
1 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 

AMENDED AGENDA 

6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and Section 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a 
request for economic development assistance. 

REGULAR MEETING December 11, 2017 

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION – Darren Shulman, City Attorney

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council
held on November 27, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Budget Work Session meeting
of Council held on December 2, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Budget Work Session meeting
of Council held on December 4, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Parking and Safety 

meeting held on August 21, 2017. 
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree

Commission meeting held on October 24, 2017.  
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Historic Preservation

Commission meeting held on October 25, 2017.  
D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission

meeting held on November 1, 2017. 
E. Resolution No. 17-65, a resolution establishing a consistent term

end for appointments to Citizen Boards, Committees, and 
Commission and extending appointments set to expire until June 
30, 2018, when all appointments and reappointments for all 



2 

positions will be made.   
F. Establish January 8, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 

public hearing and third reading for Ordinance No. 17-81, an 
ordinance amending the Schedule of Fees and Service Charges.  

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

8. INTRODUCTIONS
A. Parker Watson – Help Desk Technician
B. Carrie Fortman – Project Engineer
C. Jordan Selmek – Zoning Officer
D. Dwight Wells – Part Time Code Enforcement

9. PRESENTATION
A. Delaware Arts Festival Update and Request – Mark Hardymon, Arts
Festival Liaison and Linda Shearer, President of the Delaware Arts
Festival Trustees
B. Presentation Regarding the Participation of Delaware County
Finance Authority with the CoHatch Project – Bob Lamb, Delaware
County Economic Development Director and David Stadge, Finance
Authority President

10. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 17-72, an ordinance for the Judith D. 
Hook Revocable Trust for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for 
approximately 44.258 acres on parcel # 519-312-01-009-000 from R-4 
(Medium Density Residential District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential 
District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the west 
side of Troy Road. (NOTIFIED DECEMBER 8, 2017:  APPLICATION 
WITHDRAWN PER APPLICANT REQUEST)

11. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No.
17-74, an ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2018 and
declaring an emergency.

A. Municipal Court – Judge David Sunderman, Judge Marianne 
Hemmeter and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 

12. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-66, a resolution indicating
support for efforts to keep the Columbus Crew Soccer Club in Columbus.

13. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-77, an ordinance amending the
Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court Employee Benefits and
Leave Policies, and declaring an emergency.



3 
 

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-78, an ordinance amending 

Ordinance No. 16-108 establishing the pay and benefits for various part-
time and intermittent/seasonal employees of the City of Delaware, and 
declaring an emergency.  

 
15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-79, an ordinance amending the 

Management, Professional, Technical, Confidential, and Supervisory 
Employees Pay Plan, and declaring an emergency.  

 
16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-80, an ordinance amending the 

employment agreement with the City Manager, and declaring an 
emergency.    

 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-81, an ordinance amending the 

Schedule of Fees and Service Charges. 
 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-82, an ordinance for Pulte Homes 

approving a Final Development Plan for the Communities at Glenross 
Section 12 for 48 single family lots on 14.769 acres on property zoned R-
2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located south of Cheshire Road and west of 
Winterbourne Drive on Solstice Road and Holly Berry Lane.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-83, an ordinance for Pulte Homes 

approving a Final Subdivision Plat for the Communities at Glenross 
Section 12 for 48 single family lots on 14.769 acres on property zoned R-
2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located south of Cheshire Road and west of 
Winterbourne Drive on Solstice Road and Holly Berry Lane.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-84, an ordinance for Treplus 

Communities for approval of a Final Development Plan for Burr Oak 
Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres 
zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 just west of 
Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision.  

 
21. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
22. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
23. ADJOURNMENT 













































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-65 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
        
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A CONSISTENT TERM END FOR 
APPOINTMENTS TO CITIZEN BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS 
AND EXTENDING APPOINTMENTS SET TO EXPIRE UNTIL JUNE 30, 2018, 
WHEN APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS FOR ALL POSITIONS WILL 
BE MADE. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The majority of terms for the various Boards, Committees, and Commission 
end towards the end of the year.  Interviewing potential appointees is 
problematic during the budget season given the amount of activities required of 
Council and staff to close out the year.  In addition, over time the staggering of 
terms has strayed from the intended schedule.  This process will help to realign 
the terms as intended and alleviate end of the year schedule conflicts.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This resolution will extend terms set to expire to give staff time to reset all 
appointment terms and Council time to interview prospective candidates.  
Council will receive follow up legislation in June of 2018 
appointing/reappointing every seat using June 30 of the staggered year as the 
term end date.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Delaware County Letter of Appointment for Airport Commission 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-65 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A CONSISTENT TERM 
END FOR APPOINTMENTS TO CITIZEN BOARDS, 
COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS AND EXTENDING 
APPOINTMENTS SET TO EXPIRE UNTIL JUNE 30, 
2018, WHEN ALL APPOINTMENTS AND 
REAPPOINTMENTS FOR ALL POSITIONS WILL BE 
MADE. 

 
 WHEREAS, appointments to City boards, committees, and commissions 
are made by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by Council (see e.g. Charter 
Sections 101 and 102; Del. Codified Ordinance Sections 153.02 and 175.01); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, terms on City some boards, committees, and commissions are 
required to be staggered by the ordinance establishing them; and 
 
 WHEREAS, over time, the terms of some boards, committees, and 
commissions have strayed from the original schedule due to mid-term vacancies; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it would be more efficient to undertake the interview process 
established by Resolution 13-48 at one time, separate from the annual budget 
process. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio that: 

1. Staff is directed to review all appointments to boards, committees, and 
commissions in order to stagger the terms are required by their 
corresponding ordinance. 

2. All appointment terms will end on June 30. 
3. In June or July Council will pass a resolution listing the members of all 

boards, commissions, and committees providing updated term end 
dates using June 30th. 

4. All current appointments set to expire shall continue until the 
resolution referenced above is passed, with the exception of the county 
representative to the Airport Commission. 

5. Christopher Acker is hereby appointed to the County seat on the 
Airport Commission with a term ending June 30, 2021.  

 
SECTION 1.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
 
 
 



 
PASSED:                        , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________  ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















 
 

 

 

Visit  
  

 

 

 

call 

 

fax 

 

click 
City Hall  —  1 south sandusky st  —  Delaware, oh 43015 740-203-1010 740-203-1024 www.delawareohio.net 

 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: CITY COUNCIL; TOM HOMAN, CITY MANAGER  
FROM:  SEAN HUGHES, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
DATE:   12/07/2017 
RE: PRESENTATION REGARDING THE PARTICIPATION OF DELAWARE COUNTY FINANCE AUTHORITY 
WITH THE COHATCH PROJECT 

 
After we were recently able to negotiate the financing of the 18 E. William CoHatch project down to 
$1,000,000, the CoHatch team was left with a gap in their pro forma. City staff had already been facilitating 
conversations between the CoHatch team and the Delaware County Finance Authority to utilize their sales tax 
abatement program. During a recent meeting with Delaware County Economic Development Director in 
regards to the sales tax abatement, Mr. Lamb suggested that CoHatch utilize the Finance Authority’s 
Construction Lease program to help fill CoHatch’s project financing gap to move the project forward. 
 
Through the Construction Lease program, the Finance Authority is able to abate prevailing wage 
requirements for economic development related projects. This would significantly reduce overall project 
costs. Area construction companies already pay wages equivalent to prevailing wages, however, they usually 
charge more for projects based on the increased paperwork and reporting requirements necessary when 
working on prevailing wage projects. They also can abate the need to do construction bidding which would 
allow the CoHatch team to utilize the construction resources they have utilized for the rest of their facilities to 
reduce costs of renovating the 18 E. William facility.  
 
The Sales Tax Abatement and Construction Lease program were specifically given to Finance Authorities 
(Port Authorities) by the Ohio General Assembly as a means to allow government entities to partner on 
private economic development projects to encourage private investment and job growth in the state. These 
are incentives that are frequently used throughout the state. 
 
Bob Lamb and Finance Authority Board President David Stadge will be presenting to City Council on the 
opportunities for the Finance Authority to partner and assist in making the CoHatch project successful. 
 
 
CC: Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 Chris Ballard, Assistant City Attorney/Prosecutor 
 

http://www.delawareohio.net/


 

  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-72    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       NOVEMBER 27, 2017 at 7:20 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 
ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
TO R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE WEST 
SIDE OF TROY ROAD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



 

 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval.  Staff was notified December 8, 2017 that the 
applicant requested that the application be withdrawn.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 
 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-72 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK 
REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES 
ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 
(MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 
(ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF TROY ROAD. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on November 1, 
2017 recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Judith D. Hook 
Trust for approximately 44.258 acres on parcel #519-312-01-009-000 from R-4 
(Medium Density Residential District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential 
District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the west side of 
Troy Road (2017-2592). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment for the Judith D. Hook Trust 
for approximately 44.258 acres on parcel #519-312-01-009-000 from R-4 
(Medium Density Residential District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential 
District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the west side of 
Troy Road, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-74    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 27, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
       December 11, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  -- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2018, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is the first reading and first public hearing of the budget.  The budget is 
required to be adopted by Council pursuant to Section 78 of the City Charter. 
 
The second reading and second public hearing is scheduled for December 11 
and work sessions are scheduled for December 2 and December 4. 
 
The 2018 Line Item Budget and the 2018 Programmatic Budget are available 
on the website at:  http://www.delawareohio.net/city-council-2017/ 
 
UPDATE 12/11/2017:  Since the first reading that was held on the November 
27, 2017 Council meeting, Council has held two Budget Work Sessions.  The 
second reading for Ordinance 17-74 is set for tonight’s Council meeting.   The 
two recommended changes from Council regarding alcohol sales for Hidden 
Valley Golf Course and the Community Promotions Fund will be discussed at 
the Monday night meeting (those changes have been sent under separate cover 
from Jackie Walker).    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

http://www.delawareohio.net/city-council-2017/


 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at third reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-74

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
YEAR 2018 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1.  That from and out of the balances in the various funds of the City
of Delaware, and from money anticipated to be received into said funds, there are hereby 
appropriated the following sums for use by the various departments of the City in 
performance of their functions and activities during the year ending December 31, 2018.

GENERAL FUND

CITY COUNCIL
Personnel 132,747       
Other 222,126       

CITY MANAGER
Personnel 597,466       

Other 89,090         
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Personnel 223,235       

Other 104,546       
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Personnel 205,630       

Other 185,669       
LEGAL AFFAIRS/PROSECUTOR

Personnel 727,328       

Other 66,565         
FINANCE

Personnel 1,217,890    

Other 703,783       
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Other 5,303,700    

RISK MANAGEMENT
Other 343,000       

POLICE
Personnel 7,891,689    

Other 852,374       

PLANNING
Personnel 1,008,109    

Other 153,665       
ENGINEERING

Personnel 957,748       

Other 797,673       
MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS

Personnel 149,476       

Other 360,214       
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 22,293,723 

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

Administration
Personnel 689,730       

Other 210,556       
Street Maintenance

Personnel 663,735       
Other 732,517       

Traffic Division
Personnel 374,329       

Other 348,219       
TOTAL STREET MAINTENANCE 3,019,086 



STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 100,000         

LICENSE FEE FUND 550,000         

  

STORM SEWER FUND  

Operations
Personnel 227,917       
Other 286,264       

Projects
Other 952,000       

TOTAL STORM SEWER 1,466,181     

PARKS & RECREATION FUND

Park Maintenance
Personnel 790,704       

Other 291,236       
Recreation

Other 198,699       
Urban Forestry

Personnel 79,191         

Other 62,538         
TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 1,422,368     

CEMETERY FUND

Personnel 190,445       

Other 137,512       
TOTAL CEMETERY FUND 327,957        

TREE FUND 75,000           

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND

Personnel 193,840       

Other 597,899       
TOTAL AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND 791,739         

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR FUND -                 

FIRE/EMS OPERATINS FUND

Personnel 8,452,313    

Other 3,546,687    
TOTAL FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS FUND 11,999,000   

MUNICIPAL COURT

 Judicial  

Personnel 1,403,326    
Other 70,500         

 Clerk of Courts
Personnel 1,232,920    
Other 84,900         

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 2,791,646      

RECREATION CENTER INCOME TAX 1,574,836      

SKY CLIMBER/V&P HYDRAULICS TIF FUND 70,000           

MILL RUN TIF FUND 170,000         

IDIAM FUND 24,000           

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 58,000           

INDIGENT ALCOHOL TREATMENT FUND 100,000         



OMVI ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION FUND 5,562             

POLICE JUDGMENT FUND 115,000         

PARKS EXACTION FEE FUND 168,000         

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH FUND 311,494         

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 475,722         

COURT PROBATION SERVICES FUND 283,700         

POLICE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 224,300         

FIRE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 224,300         

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 107,530         

REVOLVING LOAN FUND 124,000         

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT FUND 2,067,073      

PARK IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND 1,305,352      

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 997,609         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 4,139,325      

POINT PROJECT CAPITAL FUND 2,358,333      

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 319,500         

PARK IMPACT FEE FUND 587,500         

POLICE IMPACT FEE FUND 60,099           

FIRE IMPACT FEE FUND 100,000         

MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE IMPROVEMENT FUND 131,816         

GLENN ROAD SOUTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 10,801,300    

GLENN ROAD NORTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 124,895         

GLENN ROAD TIF FUND 1,784,282      

GOLF COURSE FUND

Personnel 150,364       

Other 64,558         
TOTAL GOLF COURSE FUND 214,922        

PARKING LOT FUND 52,800           

WATER FUND

Administration
Personnel 275,707       

Other 3,067,530    
Treatment

Personnel 836,864       

Other 1,187,900    
Distribution

Personnel 585,072       

Other 398,327       
TOTAL WATER FUND 6,351,400     



WATER CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,027,728     

WATER CAPACITY FEE FUND 3,217,108     

WATER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND 32,000           

SEWER FUND

Administration
Personnel 228,123       

Other 4,063,113    
Treatment

Personnel 876,634       
Other 1,104,284    

Maintenance
Personnel 393,022       

Other 333,523       
TOTAL SEWER FUND 6,998,699     

SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 3,019,003      

 

SEWER CAPACITY FEE FUND 4,189,913     

SE HIGHLAND SEWER FUND 997,609         

 

REFUSE FUND

Administration
Other 2,269,445    

Refuse Collection
Personnel 717,440       

Other 1,708,614    
Recycling Collection

Personnel 444,253       
Other 160,390       

TOTAL REFUSE FUND 5,300,142      

GARAGE ROTARY FUND   
Personnel 309,002       

Other 345,491       
TOTAL GARAGE ROTARY FUND 654,493         

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ROTARY FUND   

Staff Support  
Personnel 419,857       

Other 82,071         
System Support  

Other 513,170       
GIS Operations  

Personnel 89,495         

Other 60,736         
TOTAL IT ROTARY FUND 1,165,329      

SELF INSURANCE FUND 5,794,700      

 

WORKERS COMPENSATION RESERVE FUND 560,000        

FIRE DONATION FUND 6,000             

PARKS DONATION FUND 6,315             

POLICE DONATION FUND 7,000             

MAYOR'S DONATION FUND 2,800             

PROJECT TRUST FUND 10,000           

 

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 8,000            

UNCLAIMED FUNDS COURT FUND 2,500             



 

DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 50,000          

JEDD INCOME TAX FUND 275,000         

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 2,000             

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 75,000           

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE FUND 15,000           

   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS 114,685,689  

SECTION 2.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make payment from any
of the foregoing appropriations to the extent of the amounts contained in the respective
appropriations whenever claims, duly approved by the officer authorized by law to approve such
claims, are presented.

SECTION 3.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized and empowered to make
necessary changes which are not in conflict with this ordinance within a given appropriation to
carry out the functions of the City.  No changes to the total amount of a departmental or fund
appropriation may be made without the legislative action of the City Council.

SECTION 4.  That any sums which shall be expended from the above appropriation and
which are a proper charge against any other department, or against any person, firm or corporation,
shall, if repaid within the period covered by such appropriation, be credited to the fund from which
such payment was made.

SECTION 5.  In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.14, 5705.15, 
and 5705.16 the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make the interfund transfers
identified in the 2018 Budget Detail presented to, and approved by, City Council as part of 
the 2018 Budget adoption process.

SECTION 6.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this ordinance to
the Budget Commission of Delaware County.

SECTION 7. Emergency Clause.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an
emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, health and welfare of the
City, and further to provide lawful appropriations available for expenditure by January 1, 2018, and
as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yeas ____ Nays ____

PASSED: ________________, 2017 Yeas ____ Nays ____

ATTEST:
Clerk Mayor



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-66 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
        
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION INDICATING SUPPORT FOR EFFORTS TO KEEP THE 
COLUMBUS CREW SOCCER CLUB IN COLUMBUS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In October of 2017 the chairman of the Columbus Crew Soccer Club 
announced his intention to explore relocation of the franchise to Austin, Texas. 
Surrounding communities have been passing similar legislation to show their 
support in having the Columbus Crew remain in Columbus.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This resolution recognizes the financial and economic impact that the 
Columbus Crew has to Central Ohio, as well as recognizing their community 
outreach and volunteer efforts.  This legislature urges Crew owner, Anthony 
Precourt and MLS Commission Don Garber to have the Columbus Crew remain 
in Columbus.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Councilmember Chris Jones, First Ward 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-66 
 

A RESOLUTION INDICATING SUPPORT FOR EFFORTS 
TO KEEP THE COLUMBUS CREW SOCCER CLUB IN 
COLUMBUS. 

 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the investor-operator and chairman of 

Columbus Crew Soccer Club announced his intention to explore relocation of 
the franchise to Austin, Texas; and 
  

WHEREAS, Columbus Crew Soccer Club is the first charter member of 
Major League Soccer, founded in 1996; and 
  

WHEREAS, Columbus is home to the first soccer-specific stadium in the 
United States, built to provide stability to Major League Soccer at time of 
uncertainty in the young league’s existence, creating a foundation for Major 
League Soccer to persist through the contraction of franchises in Miami and 
Tampa Bay in 2002, endangering the life of the league, to grow to its current 
size of 22 total franchises; and 
  

WHEREAS, the players, coaches and staff have represented the City of 
Columbus nationally and internationally with high level of skill, determination, 
confidence and character, earning them the nom de guerre “America’s Hardest 
Working Team,” and winning the 2008 MLS Cup; the 2004, 2008 and 2009 
Supporters’ Shields; and the 2002 Lamar Hunt U.S. Open Cup; and 
  

WHEREAS, Columbus Crew Soccer Club and its charitable arm, Crew SC 
Foundation have worked to strengthen the Central Ohio community through 
numerable volunteer hours with programs such as Soccer Aid, fundraisers for 
the Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation, Columbus Reads, Keep Columbus 
Beautiful, Soccer for Success and the Kirk Urso Memorial Scholarship, in 
addition to adopting the Linden-McKinley STEM Academy boys varsity team - 
helping them field a team for the first time in ten years; and 
  

WHEREAS, Columbus Crew Soccer Club has produced an economic 
impact of $20 million to $25 million according to an economic impact study the 
franchise commissioned in 2011, and has secured high-profile corporate 
sponsorships in the intervening timeframe with major companies like Mapfre 
Insurance, Central Ohio’s own Barbasol, and major Columbus region employer 
Honda through its Acura brand; and 

 
WHEREAS, being located in a neighboring City to Delaware, the 

Columbus Crew provides an opportunity for Delaware families to experience 
professional soccer; and  
  



WHEREAS, the investor-operator of Columbus Crew Soccer Club on 
October 17, 2017 publically stated that he is willing to privately finance a new 
world-class, state-of-the-art soccer-specific stadium in Downtown Columbus to 
make Columbus Crew Soccer Club a standard bearer in American soccer that 
is vibrant and celebrated. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

SECTION 1.  That this Council does hereby urge the investor-operator 
and chairman of Columbus Crew Soccer Club to keep Crew SC in Columbus. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-77    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Judge David Sunderman, Judge Marianne Hemmeter and Clerk 

Cindy Dinovo 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE MUNICIPAL COURT AND 
CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Municipal Court and Clerk of Court’s 2018 Employee Benefits and Leave 
Polices are attached, along with, a memo summarizing the changes.  Notable 
changes include: 

• Adding Eligibility for the City’s Vision Care Plan 
• Increasing the Clerk’s Life Insurance to $100,000. 
• Expanding salary range for Office Assistant 
• Adding Mission Docket Coordinator/Community Control Officer and 

Veteran Mentor Coordinator to the salary ranges 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Judge David Sunderman, Judge Marianne Hemmeter and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.  If legislation is taken to a third reading per Council’s readings policy, 
passage on January 8, 2018 would permit an effective date of December 27, 
2017, as January 9, 2018 will be the end of the pay period.  An emergency 
clause will remain necessary.   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo 
Amended Pay Plan 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-77 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE 
MUNICIPAL COURT AND CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court 

Employee Benefits and Leave Policies shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes (attached hereto). 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTON 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is required 
to enact the changes effective on December 27, 2017.  Therefore this Ordinance 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
RULES SUSPENSION:       YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE:      YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________        ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



General Information: (740) 203-1500  •   Fax: (740) 203-1599  •   Web Site: www.municipalcourt.org 
Judges’ Chambers: (740) 203-1501  •   Clerk of Court: (740) 203-1550  •   Jury Service: (740) 203-1513 

Community Control Office: (740) 203-1525  •   Civil/Small Claims Division: (740) 203-1560   
 Criminal/Traffic Division: (740) 203-1570 

DAVID P. SUNDERMAN           MARIANNE T. HEMMETER   KEVIN L. PELANDA 

           Judge                     Judge             Magistrate 
 
 
 
   
      

DELAWARE MUNICIPAL COURT 

JUSTICE CENTER • 70 NORTH UNION STREET • DELAWARE, OHIO 43015-1939 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMO 
 

TO:  Judge Sunderman and Judge Hemmeter 
 

FROM: Rick Fair  

 

DATE: November 20, 2017 

 

RE:  2018 Draft Employee Benefits and Leave Policies 
____________________________________________________________________ 

 
Judge Sunderman and Judge Hemmeter, attached is a draft of the 2018 Delaware Municipal Court and 
Clerk of Court Employee Benefits and Leave Policies. There are a few changes, some of which are at the 
request of the Clerk. The following is a synopsis of the changes: 

1.  Policy 23 Holiday Pay Personal Leave-Section 1-pg 2  

           The dates have been changed for 2018. 

2.  Policy 26 Sick Leave-Section 1 pg. 6 (last paragraph) 

The Clerk requested the following be removed from the 1st sentence in the paragraph; “and state the 
nature of the illness”. The sentence will now read, “Employees are required to report their intent to 
use sick leave prior to the start of each workday, unless the employee has made other reporting 
arrangements with the Administrative Judge, or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee.” 

3.  Policy 28 Insurance-Section 1C; Vision Care Plan-pg. 12 (new) 

The Clerk requested this be added to the Benefits/Leave Policies now that all full time City 
employees are eligible for vision care. The below language was taken from a MOU between the City 
and AFSCME, with the exception of the last sentence, which I feel is appropriate. “The City will 
contribute $6 a month towards vision coverage. The employee will be responsible for the balance of 
the monthly cost of the selected coverage. The City may cease to make this contribution if the City no 
longer offers vision coverage.” Please contact the Department of Administrative Services if you have 
questions. 

 



 

 

 

4.  Policy 28 Insurance-Section 2; Life Insurance-pg. 12 

The Clerk advised that she is eligible to have her life insurance increased to $100K from $50K. 

5.  Policy 34-Salary Ranges-pgs. 14-15 

The maximum hourly range for the Office Assistant position was expanded from $17 to $20 per hour, 
changing the maximum annual salary from $35,360 to $41,600. (This was per Doug Staugler.) 

The positions of Mission Docket Coordinator/Community Control Officer and Veteran Mentor 
Coordinator were added to the salary page ranges. 

Please let me know if you have any questions regarding any of the above, or would like me to make any 
additional changes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Delaware Municipal Court 
and 

Clerk of Court 
 

Employee Benefits 
And Leave Policies 

 
 

Effective December 27, 2017 
 
 
 
 

Delaware Municipal Court 
and 

Clerk of Court 
70 North Union Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 



 
2 

 

SECTION IV.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE 

Policy 23.  Holiday Pay and Personal Leave 
 

Section 1. The following are designated as paid holidays for the Municipal Court 
and the Clerk of Court employees: 

 
New Year’s Day, January 1     
Martin Luther King Day, 3rd Monday in January  
Memorial Day, last Monday in May 
Independence Day, July 4th 
Labor Day, 1st Monday in September 
Little Brown Jug Day, 1/2 day - 3rd Thursday after Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day, 4th Thursday in November  
Day after Thanksgiving 
Day before Christmas, December 24, 1/2 day 
Christmas Day, December 25 

   Day before New Year’s, December 31, 1/2 day 
 
Revised Nov. 2017 
 

Holidays that fall on Saturday will be observed on Friday, and 
holidays that fall on Sunday will be observed on the following 
Monday. 

 
Section 2. If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on 

vacation leave, that day will not be charged against his/her vacation. 
  
Section 3. Employees will be credited with 32 hours of personal leave a year.  Use 

of personal days will be at the employee’s discretion with approval of the 
Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee. 

 
Section 4. Employees are permitted to accumulate two years’ worth of personal 

days.   
 
Section 5. At the time of separation, an employee will be compensated for all 

accrued but unused personal days. 

Policy 24.  Vacation Leave  
 

Section 1. The vacation year for employees will end at the close of business on the 
last pay period that ends in the month of December. 

 
Section 2. Each full-time employee will accrue vacation leave by pay period at the 

annual rate of work hours based on years of full-time total service which 
is established in the schedules contained in Section 3 of this article.  
Years of total full-time service is defined to be the total of all periods of 
full-time employment for the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court 
or as defined in Section 6.  Any period of interruption of service due to 



 
3 

 

resignation, layoff, disciplinary suspension, or discharge for cause, will 
not be included in the computation of total service.  Time not in paid 
status, excepting military leave, will also be excluded in computing total 
service.  In computing years of service, the higher rate of accrual will be 
on the first day of the first pay period in which a year of service is 
completed. 

 
If an employee of the Court or of the Clerk’s office has received or is 
receiving retirement benefits from any of the state retirement funds – the 
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, the Police and Fire Pension 
Fund, the State Teachers Retirement System, the Public School 
Employees Retirement System, or the Highway Patrol Retirement 
System – the years of public service for which the employee has 
received or is receiving those retirement benefits will not be included in 
any computation of service time for vacation-leave accrual while the 
employee is working for the Court or for the Clerk. 

 
Section 3. For employees hired before December 31, 2013, vacation leave will 

accrue as follows: 
 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hours/Year 

Vacation 
Hours/Pay 

Start through 5 years   80.6 3.1 

6 through 10 years 119.6 4.6 

11 through 15 years 161.2 6.2 

16 or more years 200.2 7.7 
 

For employees hired after December 31, 2013, vacation leave will accrue 
as follows: 

 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hours/Year 

Vacation 
Hours/Pay 

Start through 5 years   80.6 3.1 

6 through 15 years 119.6 4.6 

16 or more years 161.2 6.2 
 

Section 4. Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum number of work hours 
established in the following paragraph will become void as of the close of 
business on the last day of the last pay period that ends in the month of 
December. 

 



 
4 

 

Years of Total Service Maximum Accrual 
of Vacation Hours 

Start through 5 years 161.2 

6 through 10 years 239.2 

11 through 15 years 322.4 

16 or more years 400.4 
 

The only exception to that chart will apply to any employee who – on the 
last day of the last pay period in December 2013 – has a vacation-leave 
balance of more than 500 hours.  The vacation-leave-accrual cap for any 
such employee will be 600.6 hours, and any vacation-leave hours that 
such an employee has accrued but not used in excess of 600.6 hours on 
the last day of the last pay period of 2013 – and on that same last-pay-
period day in each succeeding year – will be void.  

 
Section 5. 
 

A. To be eligible for bi-weekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an 
employee must be in paid status for a minimum of 72 hours within that 
pay period; except that when an employee is required to report for work 
and does so report and is denied work because of circumstances beyond 
his/her control, absence from work for the balance of that day will not be 
construed as unpaid work status. 

 
B. An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from the 

Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court service through discharge, 
resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave to 
his/her credit, will be paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave 
in lieu of granting a vacation leave after his/her last day of active service 
with the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court.  That payment will 
be paid at the employee’s hourly rate of pay at the time of separation. 

 
C. When an employee dies while in paid status in the Delaware Municipal 

Court or Clerk of Court, any unused vacation leave to his/her credit will 
be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, or other person the 
employee may have designated in writing. 

 
Section 6.  To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation 

benefits to the City of Delaware (Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of 
Court) from prior employment inside the State of Ohio: 

 
A. Employees are eligible to transfer prior years of service completed as 

employees of this Court, the Clerk of this Court, or the City of Delaware. 
 

B. The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited. 



 
5 

 

 
C. Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
Section 7. An employee may elect to convert up to two weeks of accrued and 

unused vacation time to cash during any calendar year.  An employee 
must inform the Administrative Judge or the Clerk of Court prior to 
August 1 of the year preceding the calendar year in which the employee 
intends to convert the unused vacation leave to cash, and the employee 
must maintain at least 40 hours of accrued and unused vacation leave in 
the employee’s account after that conversion takes place. 

Policy 25.  Funeral Leave 
Section 1. Each regular full-time employee is entitled to funeral leave with pay as 

follows: 
 

Leave for Death of: Days/Hours of Leave 

Immediate Family Member 1 - 3 days 

Other Relative 4 - 8 hours 

* One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but 
additional time up to the maximum will be given only with approval 
of the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of 
Court or his/her designee. 

 
** All leave time with approval of the Administrative Judge or his/her 

designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 
  
Section 2. For the purposes of this section, Immediate Family Member means 

spouse, child, brother, sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-
sister, step-parents, grandparents, grandchildren, sister-in-law, brother-
in-law, and parents-in-law. 

 
Section 3. Funeral Leave time does not include an employee’s regularly scheduled 

day off to which the employee is already entitled. 

Policy 26.  Sick Leave 

The Court and the Clerk of Court may from time to time supplement these sick leave 
policies with additional terms that apply to their employees only.  For a full 
understanding of the use of sick leave, employees should consult not only this benefit 
manual but also the office policies promulgated by the particular officeholder – whether 
the Administrative Judge or the Clerk of Court – for whom the employee works. 

Section 1. Each employee is entitled to sick leave with pay of 4.6 hours for each 
completed 80 hours of service.   

 



 
6 

 

An employee may use sick leave upon approval of the Administrative 
Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee for 
the following reasons: 

A. Illness or injury of the employee or his/her immediate family. 

B. Medical, dental, or optical examinations or treatment of an 
employee or his/her immediate family that requires the 
employee’s attendance. 

C. If a member of the immediate family is afflicted with a contagious 
disease, or when, through exposure to a contagious disease, the 
presence of the employee at his/her job will jeopardize the health 
of others. 

D. Pregnancy and/or childbirth and other conditions related thereto 
inclusive of leave for male employees for the care of the 
employee’s wife and family during postnatal period. 

For purposes of this section, the definition of immediate family is: 
grandparents, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, brother, sister, 
brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, spouse, child, 
stepchild, grandchild, legal guardian, or other person who stands in the 
place of a parent (in loco parentis). 

Employees are required to report their intent to use sick leave prior to the 
start of each workday, unless the employee has made other reporting 
arrangements with the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the 
Clerk of Court or his/her designee. The employee must make this phone 
call unless medically detained by a physician at the time.  The 
Administrative Judge, or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee, may contact the employee sometime during the day to discuss 
the reasons for the absence. 

Section 2. Sick leave must be taken in half-hour increments.  
 
Section 3. If an employee used zero hours of sick leave in any calendar year, that 

employee will be credited with an additional three vacation days the 
following year. If an employee uses between one and eight hours of sick 
leave in any one calendar year, that employee will be credited with an 
additional two vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between nine and 16 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that 
employee will be credited with one additional vacation day the following 
year.  At the employee’s option, any additional vacation days earned can 
be taken in the form of vacation leave or compensation in cash. 

Section 4. Any employee who has accumulated at least 800 hours of sick leave 
credit may, during any calendar year, convert up to 80 hours of sick 
leave to vacation on the basis of two hours of sick leave for one hour 
vacation leave. 



 
7 

 

If an employee has earned sick leave in another public-sector job and 
then has transferred unused sick leave to the Court or Clerk of Court’s 
office at the start of the employee’s current period of employment with 
the Court or Clerk of Court that transferred sick leave cannot be 
converted to vacation leave under this section. 

All sick leave accumulated by the employee during the employee’s 
current period of employment with the Court or the Clerk of Court must 
be exhausted by the employee or converted to vacation leave before the 
employee may use any sick leave that has been added to the 
employee’s sick-leave balance in accordance with Section 5 of this sick-
leave policy. 

Section 5. To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior 
public employment in the State of Ohio: 

 
A. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public 

agency as defined by the State of Ohio. 

B. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within 10 
years of termination from their previous employer. 

C. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred 
is unlimited. 

Section 6. Any employee who separates from the Delaware Municipal Court or 
Clerk of Court employment for other than just cause will be paid for all 
accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one hour of pay for 
every three hours of unused sick leave.  Total sick leave payout cannot 
exceed 12 weeks’ pay. 

Section 7. An employee must complete and sign a request for leave form provided 
by the City to justify the use of sick leave.  Payment for sick leave is 
subject to final approval by the Administrative Judge or his/her designee 
or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee.  The City, Delaware Municipal 
Court, or Clerk of Court may require the employee to furnish a statement 
from a licensed medical practitioner if medical attention was sought or for 
any absence in excess of three consecutive days whether for the 
employee or his/her immediate family.  Such statement must include the 
nature of the illness or injury, the inability to perform his/her duties, the 
prognosis, and the estimated date when the employee can be expected 
to return to work.  Failure of the employee to provide such statement and 
request for leave form when requested may result in the denial of sick 
leave pay. 

Section 8. Falsification of a request for leave form or a medical practitioner’s 
statement may be grounds for disciplinary action.  The City, Delaware 
Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court maintains the right to have any 
employee examined by a licensed medical practitioner selected and paid 
by the City.  Alternatively, the employee required to see a physician may 



 
8 

 

see a physician of his/her own choosing, but in that event will not be 
reimbursed for the costs incurred. 
 
The City, Delaware Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court may deny the 
payment of sick leave if the investigation indicates that the absence was 
not within the provisions of this article.  Denial of sick-leave payment will 
not preclude the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court from 
implementing any disciplinary action. 

Section 9.  Sick Leave Abuse 

It is the mutual interest of the employee and the Delaware Municipal 
Court or Clerk of Court to prevent the abuse or misuse of sick leave.  
The acceptable usage of sick leave is explained in this policy. 

Employees must not abuse or demonstrate a pattern of sick-leave and/or 
leave-without-pay usage.  The abuse of sick leave or the patterned use 
of sick leave will be just and sufficient cause for discipline.  A request of 
sick leave will be denied if the employee fails to comply with the 
procedures for proper sick leave usage, fails to present a required 
physician’s statement, or if an investigation of a request for sick leave 
discloses facts inconsistent with the proper use of sick leave.  
Falsification of applications for sick leave or the filing of sick leave 
applications and documentation with intent to defraud may result in the 
disapproval of sick leave and may be grounds for disciplinary action, up 
to and including discharge. 

Any employee who is hospitalized will not have such period of leave 
considered in determining whether the employee is abusing sick-leave 
benefits. 

The implementation of this section does not preclude the right of the 
Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court to discipline an employee for 
the abuse of sick leave, to require a statement from the employee’s 
physician, or to have the employee examined by a physician.  Any 
employee who has been disciplined for abuse of sick leave may be 
required to furnish a statement from the employee’s physician for each 
use of sick leave up to six months in duration.  The City, Delaware 
Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court may, with mutual agreement of both 
parties, extend the need for sick leave verification for an additional six 
month period.  The City, Delaware Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court 
also maintains the right to investigate all absences. 

Policy 27.  Injury Leave 
 
Section 1. All regular full-time employees are entitled to injury leave with pay, less 

any Worker’s Compensation weekly salary benefits that they may be 
awarded by the Industrial Commission of Ohio (ICO), for a period not to 
exceed 120 consecutive working days for employees working a 40 hour 
work week for each injury incurred in the performance of employment 



 
9 

 

duties with the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court, provided that 
the following procedures are followed: 

 
A. In all cases of personal injury to any full-time Delaware Municipal 

Court or Clerk of Court employee as a result of the performance of 
employment duties, the employee must immediately complete an 
accident/injury investigation form and report the accident/injury to 
the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court 
or his/her designee, who must immediately report said 
accident/injury to the Department of Administrative Services and 
ensure that a claim is filed with ICO. 

 
B. In the event that time off from work is required by the injured 

employee, he/she will be granted injury leave from the first day of 
injury, if the proper documentation is submitted to the City of 
Delaware.  This documentation will include, but not be limited to, a 
statement from the employee’s physician, an Agreement covering 
Compensation Reimbursement, any necessary ICO forms and 
other documents as may be required by the City.  In the event that 
the ICO determines that the injury is NOT employment related, 
any time the employee is, or has been, absent from work will be 
deducted first, from any accrued sick leave, then accrued 
vacation, or accrued compensation time off, other than 
compensatory time for overtime worked. 

 
C. During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under 

this policy, all normal benefits given to regular full-time employees 
will remain in force with no deductions to earned sick leave and/or 
vacation time. 

 
D. In all cases where an injury leave of more than 120 consecutive 

working days is requested by an employee working a 40 hour 
work week, the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or Clerk 
of Court or his/her designee may extend such leave by an 
additional 120 consecutive working days if such necessity is 
determined to his/her satisfaction.  Each employee requesting 
such an extension under this policy may be required to furnish a 
current affidavit from a licensed physician setting forth the need 
for the extension. 

Policy 28.  Insurance 
 

Section 1. Hospitalization, Surgical, and Major Medical.  The City will continue to 
provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical, and major medical 
coverage for all full-time members and their dependents.  Beginning 
January 1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, the City may implement a 
Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).  The Plan if implemented will 
provide for the following deductibles and co-payments as follows: 

 



 
10 

 

 NETWORK 
PROVIDERS 

NON-NETWORK 
PROVIDERS 

Annual Deductible      
Single 

           Family 

 
None 
None 

 
$   500.00 
$1,000.00 

Office Visit Co-Pay $10.00 N/A 

ER Visit 
 
 
Co-Pay 

$50.00 unless admitted 
into the hospital, 
otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of 
the deductible. 

N/A 

Co-Insurance               
Single 
 
 

           Family 

 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
 
50/50% of first $10,000 
 

 
Contributions will be deducted from the member’s gross income prior to taxes, subject 
to compliance with all applicable tax regulations. 
 
Employees will contribute to the cost of the health benefit plan in an amount 
determined annually by the City of Delaware.  Annual changes to the calculated 
COBRA rate will be applied to the monthly employee contributions on the first full pay-
period in April of each year.  Contributions will be deducted from all members in a paid 
status based on twelve months times the monthly rate, divided by the number of pay 
periods per year.  An example would be $56.95/mo. x 12 = $683.40, $683.40/26 pay 
periods = $26.28 per pay period.  In the event federal tax regulations are changed so 
that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will not be responsible to 
pick up the member’s tax burden.   
 
The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options through a 
spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of $100.00 per month.  
Families who have both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will not be 
eligible to opt out of the plan.  Likewise, these employees will not be subject to monthly 
payroll contributions.  The employee will provide proof that they do in fact have other 
coverage before the City will drop that employee's current coverage.  The City will 
continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under the employee's spouse's 
insurance.  A member may elect to return to coverage under the City's insurance plan 
by notifying the City in writing of any substantial changes in their qualifying family 
circumstances.  The member must give thirty days notice of his or her election to 
return to the City's plan, except in the case of an emergency, such as sudden loss of 
spouse's coverage, divorce or other change in family status.  The plan will comply with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 125 which governs this matter.  
 



 
11 

 

Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be compensated as 
follows: 
 

No Coverage     $100 per month 
Maintain Prescription Only   $ 60 per month 
Maintain Dental Only   $ 65 per month 
Maintain Prescription and Dental  $ 55 per month 
 
* An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only. 

 
Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days notice of an 
employee’s desire to drop coverage.  A form will be provided which will contain all 
information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan.  The form must be 
signed and returned to the Department of Administrative Services.  Until such time that 
an employee is effectively dropped from City coverage, they will be subject to any 
payroll contributions. 
 
All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other pay on 
employee’s paycheck.  This income will not be included in income subject to PERS 
contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes. 
 

A. Prescription Plan 
 
The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their 
dependents. 
 
The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher amount 
and the employee paying the lesser amount of prescription coinsurance: 
 

 80/20% for generic drugs 
 50/50% name brand drugs with a $25.00 co-pay for each 

disbursement 
 
The mail order benefits will be the following: 
 

 90/10% for generic drugs and 
 75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25.00 co-pay. 

 
The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250.00 
annually for single coverage and $500.00 for family annually for prescription 
benefits, however, the $25.00 co-pay for retail name brand drugs will not count 
towards the calculation of the $250.00 or the $500.00 coinsurance maximum 
and will always apply even after an employee reaches the coinsurance 
maximum expenditure. 
 
B. Dental Care Plan 
 
The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members.  Please 
contact Department of Administrative Services if you have questions. 



 
12 

 

 
C. Vision Care Plan 
 
The City will contribute $6 a month towards vision coverage. The employee will 
be responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of the selected coverage. 
The City may cease to make this contribution if the City no longer offers vision 
coverage. Please contact the Department of Administrative Services if you have 
questions. 

 
*Revised Nov 2017 
 
Section 2. Life Insurance 
 
The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 
 

Clerk of Court*                    $ 100,000.00 
Magistrate                                                        $   45,000.00 
Clerk’s Chief Deputy                                        $   30,000.00 
Court IT Director                                              $   30,000.00 
All other full time employees                            $   20,000.00 

  
*Revised Nov 2017 
 
Section 3. Certificate of Coverage 
 
The City will provide a certificate of coverage for each Court employee.  Such 
certificate will be for the employee’s family situation. 

Policy 29.  Overtime Compensation  
 

Section 1.  Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time - Nonexempt Employees 
 
Employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the 
provisions of the Fair Labor Standard Act are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory 
time as described below: 
 

 Employees must receive prior approval from the Administrative Judge or 
his/her designee or Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 

 
 Employees will be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in 

active pay status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of 40 
hours in any work week will be compensated at a rate of time and one-
half.  Payment in cash will be made for any overtime due at the time of 
separation from City service. 

 
 In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated 

for overtime by compensatory time off in accordance with the law.  Such 
compensatory time off will be equal to 1.5 hours for each hour overtime 
compensation to which the employee is entitled.  All requests for 



 
13 

 

compensatory time are subject to approval of the department head.  Any 
compensatory time that is used by an employee must be taken at a time 
mutually agreeable to the supervisor and the employee. 

 
 Employees can accumulate up to 80 hours of compensatory time.  When 

an employee has 80 hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further 
overtime will be paid in cash. 

 
 Compensatory time will be submitted on the regular payroll sheet 

detailing the time earned and taken. 
 
Section 2.  Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time - Exempt Employees 
 
Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act are not entitled to overtime pay 
but are entitled to compensatory time as described below: 
 

 Employees must receive prior approval from the Administrative Judge or 
his/her designee or Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 

 
 Compensatory time will be earned for approved work that exceeds the 

40 hour work week and such employees may receive said compensatory 
time at the rate of one hour for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours 
per week. 

 
 The maximum accrual of compensatory time is 80 hours. 

 
 Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one hour 

and maximum increments of 16 hours. 
 

 At no time will compensatory time be converted to any other form of 
leave or compensation. 

 
 Compensatory time must be listed on the regular payroll sheet detailing 

the time earned and taken. 

Policy 30.  Special Leave 
 
The Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee, may 
authorize special leave of absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the 
employee and/or the Court or Clerk of Court. 
 

A. Jury Service Leave 
An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, the 
State of Ohio, or any adjoining county, will be paid his/her regular salary for each 
workday during the period of time so served.  Time so served will be deemed active 
and continued service for all purposes.  All jury fees received from the court where the 
jury was seated will be assigned to the City of Delaware and submitted to the 
Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee, to 
be forwarded to the City Finance Director. 



 
14 

 

 
 
 
 
B. Court Leave 

 
Time off with pay will be allowed for work-related incidents where an employee is 
subpoenaed as a witness in civil matters in any court of record in Delaware County, 
State of Ohio, or any adjoining county.  All witness fees will be assigned to the City of 
Delaware and submitted to the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk 
of Court or his/her designee, to be forwarded to the City Finance Director. 

Policy 31.  Family and Medical Leave Act  
 
The Family and Medical Leave Act policies in the City of Delaware’s Employment Handbook 
apply to the employees of both the Court and the Clerk of Court. 

Policy 32.  Parks and Recreation Credit 
 
The City will provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a City Pool membership, 
City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals (shelters or Hilborn Room).  The 
amount of the credit is $60.00. This membership is defined and regulated by the Recreation 
Services Department and employees must abide by the stipulations set forth by the 
department both in definition and restrictions.  This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur.  In addition, the City will provide to each 
member a 20% discount on all individual registrations for City recreation programs. 

Policy 33.  On-Call Compensation 
 
Both exempt and non-exempt employees of the Clerk of Court will be eligible for on-call 
compensation for weekly periods when assigned the responsibility of responding to law-
enforcement requests during non-scheduled work periods.  Employees assigned to this on-
call status will serve in this posture for weekly time periods as authorized by the Clerk or by 
the Clerk’s designee.  Employees assigned to on-call status will be compensated at a weekly 
rate of between $25 and $50 as determined by the Clerk of Court.  On-call compensation will 
be added to regular and overtime wages earned during the pay period and will be paid as 
taxable income through the bi-weekly payroll process. 

Policy 34.  Salary Ranges 

Each employee is required to pay all required employee contributions to the Ohio Public 
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). 
 

SALARY RANGES - MUNICIPAL COURT: 

JOB TITLE HOURLY WAGE ANNUAL SALARY 

MINIMUM MAXIMUM MINIMUM MAXIMUM 

OFFICE ASSISTANT* $12.37 $20 $25,730 $41,600 



 
15 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $14.53 $20 $30,222 $41,600 

BAILIFF/SECURITY OFFICER $16.28 $27 $33,662 $56,160 

COMMUNITY CONTROL  OFFICER $16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

OVI DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

MISSION DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER* 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

VETERAN MENTOR COORDINATOR*     $16        $24    $33,280    $49,920 

ASSIGNMENT ADMINISTRATOR $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

ASSIGNMENT COMMISSIONER/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

ADMIN.  ASSISTANT/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

DEPUTY CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

MAGISTRATE $34.67 $52 $72,114 $108,160 

 
*Revised Nov. 2017        
 

SALARY RANGES - CLERK OF COURT: 

1901.31(H) Deputy Clerks of a municipal court other than the Carroll County Municipal Court 
may be appointed by the Clerk and shall receive the compensation, payable in either 
biweekly instalments or semi-monthly instalments, as determined by the payroll administrator, 
out of the City Treasury, that the Clerk may prescribe, except that the compensation of any 
Deputy Clerk of a county-operated municipal court shall be paid out of the treasury of the 
county in which the Court is located. The Judge of the Carroll County Municipal Court may 
appoint Deputy Clerks for the Court, and the Deputy Clerks shall receive the compensation, 
payable in biweekly instalments out of the county treasury, that the Judge may prescribe. 
Each Deputy Clerk shall take an oath of office before entering upon the duties of the Deputy 
Clerk’s office and, when so qualified, may perform the duties appertaining to the office of the 
Clerk. The Clerk may require any of the Deputy Clerks to give bond of not less than three 
thousand dollars, conditioned for the faithful performance of the Deputy Clerk’s duties. 

Policy 35.  Permanent Part-Time Employees 
 
Permanent part-time employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

Section 1.  Wages   
 

 Permanent part-time employees will be paid on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the table in Policy 34 above. 

 



 
16 

 

 
Section 2.  Benefits 
 

A. Permanent part-time employees will accrue Universal Leave on a 
prorated basis of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay 
period. 

 
B. Permanent part-time employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a 

major holiday, which includes the following:  Memorial Day, July 4, Labor 
Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year’s Day.  Holiday Pay is 
defined as one and one-half times the permanent part-time employee’s 
regular hourly rate. 

 
C. Overtime will be compensated at straight time rates for all hours in paid 

status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of 40 hours in any 
work week will be compensated for a rate of time and one-half. 

 
D. The permanent part-time employee is responsible for payment of the 

employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement System. 
 

E. Upon termination of employment with the Court or Clerk of Court, 
permanent part-time employees will not receive pay-out for any leave 
accumulated. 

 
F. If a permanent part-time employee becomes full time with the Court or 

Clerk of Court, any accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
permanent part-time employee’s sick leave balance. 

Policy 37.  Intermittent Part-Time/Seasonal Employees 
 
Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

Section 1.  Wages 
 

Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees will be paid on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the table in Policy 35 above. 

 
Section 2.  Benefits 
 

Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees are not eligible for benefits, but 
the intermittent part-time, and/or seasonal employee is responsible for payment 
of the employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement System. 



 
17 

 

 

Receipt and Acknowledgment Form 
 
The employee policy manual and employee benefits manual include important information 
about employment at the Delaware Municipal Court and the Clerk of Court’s office, and I 
understand that I should consult my immediate supervisor regarding any questions that are 
not answered in those documents.  If my supervisor cannot answer my question, I should 
consult with the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee. 
 
I have entered into my employment relationship with the Delaware Municipal Court or the 
Clerk of Court voluntarily and I acknowledge that there is no specified length of employment.  
Accordingly, the Delaware Municipal Court, the Clerk of Court, or I may terminate the 
relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time. 
 
Because the information, policies, and benefits described here are necessarily subject to 
change, I acknowledge that revisions to the administrative policy manual and the employee-
benefits manual may occur, though I also understand that my position is and will remain an 
employment-at-will position.  Any changes in the manuals will be communicated through 
official notices, and I understand that that revised information may supersede, modify, or 
eliminate existing policies.  Only the Administrative Judge or Clerk of Court of the Delaware 
Municipal Court has the ability to adopt any revisions to the policies in this handbook. 
 
Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a 
legal document.  I have received the administrative policy manual and the employee-benefits 
manual, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and to comply with the policies 
contained in these documents as well as any revisions made to them later. 
 
 
 
 
              
Employee's Signature     Date 
 
 
 
 
       
Employee’s Name (Please Print) 
 
 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-78    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 16-108 ESTABLISHING THE 
PAY AND BENEFITS FOR VARIOUS PART-TIME AND 
INTERMITTENT/SEASONAL EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2018 budget reflects an increase in wages by 2% for all 
permanent part-time and intermittent part-time/seasonal positions.  Wages for 
permanent part-time firefighters are also being recommended to increase $1.00 
per/hour (from $12.00/hr for firefighter/EMT and from $14.00/hr to 
$15.00/hr for firefighter/paramedic), based on hiring need and external market 
comparison.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
2 percent increase for all permanent part-time and intermittent part-
time/seasonal positions, as reflected in the proposed 2017 budget.  
$1.00/hour increase for permanent part-time firefighter personnel.   



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.  If legislation is taken to a third reading per Council’s readings policy, 
passage on January 8, 2018 would permit an effective date of December 27, 
2017, as January 9, 2018 will be the end of the pay period.  An emergency 
clause will remain necessary.   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-78 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 16-108 
ESTABLISHING THE PAY AND BENEFITS FOR 
VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT, AND 
SEASONAL EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City hires various part-time, intermittent/seasonal 

employees that can be divided into two classifications, to wit: permanent part- 
time and intermittent seasonal; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 155.09, Appointment Status, of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Delaware defines part-time employment, and 
Ordinance No. 15-115 established pay and benefits for various part-time 
employees of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to clarify the wages and benefits for each 

classification of part-time and intermittent/seasonal employees. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1. Ordinance No. 16-108 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
A. Effective December 28, 2016 December 27, 2017 permanent 

part-time employees shall receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

1. Wages. Permanent  part-time  employees  shall  be paid on an 
hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 

 
Pay 

Grade 
STEP 

1 
STEP 

2 
STEP 

3 
STEP 

4 
STEP 

5 
PT 1 9.06 9.39 9.78 9.99 10.19 
PT 2 13.67 14.20 14.78 15.38 15.97 
PT 3 14.37 14.94 15.50 16.17 16.81 
PT 4 16.55 17.22 17.91 18.63 19.37 
PT 5 19.18 19.77 20.38 21.02 21.64 
PT 6 21.90 22.55 23.15 23.85 24.56 

 
PAY GRADE POSITION 
PT 1 Facility Maintenance Technician I 
PT 2 Support Services Aide, Parking 

Control Officer 
PT 3 Facility Maintenance Technician II 



Clerical Specialist, Records Clerk, 
Laborer, Front Counter Clerk, Help Desk 
Technician 

PT 4 No present position 
PT 5 Investigator/Diversion Manager, 

Code Enforcement Officer 
PT 6 Human Resource Coordinator 

 
2. Benefits.  Benefits for permanent part-time are as follows: 

(a) Employees will accrue Universal Leave on a prorated basis 
of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay period. 

(b) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday Pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(c) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for all 
hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid status in 
excess of 40 hours in any work week shall be compensated 
for a rate of time and one half. 

(d) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

(e) Upon termination of employment with the City employees 
will not receive pay-out for any leave accumulated. 

(f) If an employee becomes full time with the City, any 
accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
employee’s sick leave balance. 

(g) Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to 
be applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may not 
be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will 
not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered 
at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits  are non-
transferrable. 

 
 

B. Effective January 1, 2014 December 27, 2017 permanent part-time 
firefighters shall be paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the 
following table: 

 



PAY GRADE POSITION WAGE 

PTFF1 Firefighter/EMT 12.00 
13.00/hour 

PTFF2 Firefighter/Paramedic 14.00 
15.00/hour 

 
1. Benefits. Benefits for permanent part-time firefighters are as 

follows: 
 

(a) The City will provide $10,000 of life insurance 
(b) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for all 

hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid status in 
excess of 2 12 hours in any 28 day pay cycle shall be 
compensated for a rate of time and one half. 

(c) The employee will be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution to their pension system. 

(d) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(e) Permanent part-time firefighters may not exceed 1500 
hours worked in a calendar year. 

(g)    Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to be 
applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may not 
be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will 
not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered 
at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits are non-
transferrable. 

 
C. Effective December 28, 2016 December 27, 2017 

intermittent part-time/seasonal employees shall receive the 
following wages and benefits: 

 
1. Wages. Intermittent part-time/seasonal employees shall be 

paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 
 

Pay 
Grade Position Wage/Hour 



SL 1 Cashier I $8.43 
SL 2 Cashier II $8.74 
SL 3 Cashier III $9.26 
SL 4 Laborer I, Intern I $9.65 
SL 5 Laborer II $10.72 
SL 6 Intern II, Clubhouse Manager, Laborer III $11.79 
SL 7 Laborer IV $12.86 
SL 8 Intern III $13.93 
SL 9 Intern IV, Cemetery Office Manager $15.00 

 
 

For intermittent/seasonal positions not listed above, the wages shall be 
the entry-level pay rate reflected in the applicable pay plan for the 
equivalent permanent full-time position or a pay rate established by the 
City Manager. 

 
2. Benefits. Intermittent /seasonal employees are not eligible  for 

benefits, except the following: 
 

(a) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

 
SECTION 2.  Existing Ordinance No. 16-108 is hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is required 
to enact the changes effective on December 27, 2017. Therefore this Ordinance 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS         NAYS             

ABSTAIN    
 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS NAYS    
ABSTAIN    

 

PASSED:   , 2017 YEAS NAYS    
ABSTAIN    
 

 



ATTEST:       
CITY CLERK MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-79    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, PROFESSIONAL, 
TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN, 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2018 budget reflects the addition of one new position within the 
non-union employee pay plan and an increase in wages by 2% for the non-
union employee pay plan.  The department head pay plan ranges have also 
been increased by 2%.   
 
Other notable additions/changes include the addition of a position within the 
safety forces pay plan and inclusion of tuition reimbursement language for 
non-union employees.   
 
In addition, the ordinance includes a section authorizing the Finance Director 
to sign an annual OPERS earned time off conversion document.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
A 2 percent increase for all non-union positions, as reflected in the proposed 
2017 budget.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.  If legislation is taken to a third reading per Council’s readings policy, 
passage on January 8, 2018 would permit an effective date of December 27, 
2017, as January 9, 2018 will be the end of the pay period.  An emergency 
clause will remain necessary.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Pay Plan 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-79 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, 
PROFESSIONAL, TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND 
SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the attached Management, Professional, Technical, 

Confidential and Supervisory Pay Plan shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes. 

 
SECTION 2.   That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to execute 

and submit the annual OPERS earned time conversion document on behalf of 
the City. 
 

SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be 
an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 27, 2017 which coincides 
with the new calendar year. Therefore this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
  
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 
 

 
  

The City of Delaware 2018 
Summary of Benefits 

 
 
Professional, Confidential, Supervisory and Non- Union 
Employees  
 
 
      
 
 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Section I  Pay Plans and Administration 
 

A. Non- Union Employee Pay Plan    Page 3 
B. Department Head Pay Plan    Page 5 
C. Safety Forces Pay Plan     Page 5 
D. Overtime and Compensatory Time – Non Exempt Page 6 
E. Compensatory Time – Exempt Employees  Page 7 

 
Section II  Accrued Time and Various Leaves 
 

A. Vacation       Page 8 
B. Sick Leave       Page 9 
C. Holiday and Personal Days    Page 11 
D. Funeral Leave      Page 12 
E. Special Leave      Page 12 
F. Jury Duty Leave      Page 12 
G. Court Leave      Page 13 
H. Injury Leave      Page 13 

 
Section III  Insurance 
 

A. Hospitalization, Surgery and Major Medical  Page 14 
B. Prescription Plan      Page 15 
C. Dental Care      Page 15 
D. Life Insurance      Page 16 
E. Vision Plan      Page 16 

 
Section IV  Other Compensation 
 

A. Longevity Compensation     Page 17 
B. Automobile Expense Reimbursement   Page 17 
C. Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance   Page 17 
D. Call In Pay      Page 17 
E. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT   Page 18 

 
Section V  Miscellaneous 
 

A. Personnel Files      Page 18 
B. Parks and Recreation Credit    Page 18 

  



3 
 

SECTION I 
WAGES AND PAY PLAN 

 
 
A.  Non-Union Employee Pay Plan 
 

The following pay schedule is to be effective December 28, 2016 DECEMBER 27, 2017 and the table 
 below reflects a 2% increase for each step. Step increases shall take effect the first full pay period 
 following the employee’s anniversary date. 
 
    PAY GRADE                  POSITION 

M1 Administrative Assistant, Police Administrative Aide, Desktop Technician, 
Clerk of Council 

M2 Airport Technician, Watershed Coordinator, Police Assistant 
M3    Economic Development Communications Specialist  
M4 Cemetery Manager, Financial Specialist I, Arborist  
M5 CMMS Analyst GIS/CMMS TECHNICIAN, Administrative Services 

Specialist, Right-of-Way Inspector, Zoning Technician, CMMS/CSR 
Technician 

M6 Police Technician 
M7 Building & Code Enforcement Officer I, Customer Service Liaison, 

Facility Maintenance Supervisor 
M8 Engineering Technician, Airport Operations Supervisor, Division 

Supervisor, Financial Specialist II, Executive Assistant, Building & 
Code Enforcement Officer II, Golf Course Superintendent, Project 
Manager I, Collections Manager, CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR 

M9 Assistant City Attorney/Prosecutor  
M10 Development Planner 
M11    No Current Position  
M12 GIS Coordinator, Project Manager II, Airport Manager, Construction 

Inspection Manager, IT Project Coordinator, Budget Analyst, Cost 
Accountant 

M13 Vacant  
M14 Information Systems & Network Administrator, Human Resource 

Manager, Assistant Prosecutor, Database Analyst  
M15 Project Engineer I, Assistant Water Manager, Assistant Wastewater 

Manager, Parks Superintendent  
M16    No current position 
M17    Project and Maintenance Manager, Public Works   

     Superintendent, Accountant, Zoning Administrator, Water  
     Manager, Wastewater Manager, Community Affairs Coordinator,  

Project Engineer II, Income Tax Administrator 
M18 Project Engineer III 
M19    Deputy City Engineer 
M20    No current position  

 
 
 
 



4 
 

Pay Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

M1 18.49 19.21 19.88 20.79 21.61 

M2 19.02 20.15 20.57 21.43 22.26 

M3 19.97 20.77 21.61 22.48 23.37 

M4 20.77 21.60 22.47 23.40 24.31 

M5 21.84 22.79 24.15 25.05 25.80 

M6 22.73 23.77 25.09 26.04 26.84 

M7 23.61 24.74 26.09 27.06 27.92 

M8 24.92 25.98 27.02 28.17 29.35 

M9 25.94 27.00 28.11 29.29 30.53 

M10 26.97 28.09 29.26 30.49 31.77 

M11 28.05 29.17 30.47 31.68 32.99 

M12 29.21 30.37 31.65 32.94 34.34 

M13 30.35 31.58 32.92 34.28 35.73 

M14 31.53 32.86 34.24 35.66 37.16 

M15 32.78 34.19 35.62 37.09 38.60 

M16 34.14 35.54 37.03 38.56 40.14 

M17 35.50 36.94 38.56 40.09 41.78 

M18 36.88 38.42 40.09 41.73 43.46 

M19 38.39 39.98 41.70 43.37 45.17 

M20 39.91 41.54 43.37 45.12 46.98 
  



5 
 

B. Department Head Pay Plan 
 
The following pay schedule for the positions below is to be effective December 28, 2016 DECEMBER 
27, 2017.  
 

DH III 
  

Range 

 
Dean Stelzer Finance Director $102,816.00 to $143,942.40 

 
Darren Shulman City Attorney 

  
 

 
Bruce Pijanowski Police Chief 

  
 

 
John Donahue Fire Chief 

  
 

DH II 
  

$85,680.00 to $119,952.00 

 
Bill Ferrigno Public Works Director/City Engineer 

  
 

 
David Efland Planning Director 

  
 

  
IT Director 

  
 

  
Assistant Fire Chief 

  
 

 
Brad Stanton Public Utilities Director 

  
 

 
Jackie Walker Assistant City Manager 

  
 

DH I  
  

$71,400.00 to  $99,960.00 

 
Jerry Warner Chief Building Official 

  
 

 
Sean Hughes Economic Development Director 

  
 

 
Ted Miller Parks & Recreation Director 

  
 

 
Melissa Schiffel City Prosecutor 

  
 

 
 

C. Safety Forces Pay Plan 
 
The following pay schedule is to be effective December 28, 2016 DECEMBER 27, 2017. The table 
below reflects a 2% increase for each step.  Step increases shall take effect the first full pay period 
following the employee’s anniversary date. 
 

Pay Grade STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 

  Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual 

SF1 47.82 $99,460.61  49.61 $103,194.62  51.41 $106,928.64  

       PAY GRADE 
 

POSITION 
    SF1 

 
Police Captain 

     
1.  Maximum Vacation Accrual 

If an employee enters into the Management Pay Plan with more than the maximum 
accrual of vacation hours allowed, the following will occur:  1.the employee may 
request a pay out to take the current level below the maximum allowed or 2. the current 
accrual will be “frozen” as a maximum cap for the calendar year.  The last pay of each 
year will be the next annual cap if the accrual is lower than the previous cap.  This will 
continue to occur until the employee reaches the maximum management accrual rate. 
 



6 
 

2. Initial Compensatory Time 
Prior to entering the Management Pay Plan all compensatory time will be paid out 
according to the provision in the respective bargaining contract and the employee 
compensation time will be zero (0).   

 
3. Clothing Maintenance Allowance 

The positions of Police Chief and Police Captain shall receive an annual clothing 
maintenance allowance of three hundred and forty dollars ($340) in January of each 
year. 

 
4. Uniforms Allowance 

The Management Pay Plan positions in the Police and Fire Departments will receive 
replacement uniform items when determined by the Chief that replacement is necessary. 
 

Pay Grade STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 
  Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual 

SF2 per contract per contract per contract 

       PAY 
GRADE 

 
POSITION 

    SF2 
 

Fire Captain 
     

1. Wages and associated benefits for the 40-hour/week Management Fire Captain are 
identical to those provided to equivalent bargaining unit position.  Position is 
considered overtime eligible.  Additionally, incumbent will receive 5% out-of-class 
pay when serving as Acting Chief.   

 
D. Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time:   Non-Exempt Employees  

  
For employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the provisions of the 
Fair Labor Standard Act they shall be entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time as described below: 

 
1. Employees shall be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in active pay status, except that 

all hours in paid status in excess of forty (40) hours in any workweek shall be compensated for at a 
rate of time and one-half.  Payment in cash shall be made for any overtime due at the time of 
separation from City service. 

 
2. In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated for overtime by compensatory 

time off in accordance with the law.  Such compensatory time off shall be equal to one and one-half 
(1.5) hours for each hour of overtime compensation to which the employee is entitled.  All requests 
for use of compensatory time are subject to approval of the department head.  Compensatory time 
shall be taken at a time mutually agreeable to the supervisor and the employee. 

 
3. Employees can accumulate up to eighty (80) hours of compensatory time.  When an employee has 

eighty (80) hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further overtime will be paid in cash. 
 
4. At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave or compensation; except 

when an employee separates from City service.  Upon termination of employment, a non-exempt 
employee shall be paid for unused compensatory time provided that the time was earned after April 



7 
 

14, 1986 at a rate of compensation not less than: 

a.) The average regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee during the last 3   years of 
the employee's employment, or 

b.) The final regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee, whichever is higher. 

5. Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the time earned and 
taken. 
 
 

E. Compensatory Time:  Exempt Employees  
 
 Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act shall not be entitled to overtime pay but  
 shall be entitled to compensatory time as described below: 

 
1. No existing compensatory time balances will be carried over from an outside position or when the 

employ transfers into the Management Pay Plan. 
 

  2.   Compensatory time shall be earned for approved work that exceeds eight (8) hours per day and such 
employees may receive said compensatory time at the rate of one (1) hour for each hour worked in 
excess of eight (8) hours per day. 

 
3. The maximum accrual of compensatory time shall be eighty (80) hours. 

 
4. Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one (1) hour and maximum increments 

of twenty four (24) hours per pay period.  
 

5. At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave or compensation.  Upon 
termination of employment, an exempt employee is not entitled to payment for unused compensatory 
time.   

 
6. Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the time earned and 

taken. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

SECTION II 
ACCRUED TIME AND VARIOUS LEAVES 

 
A. Vacation  

 
1. The vacation year for employees shall end at the close of business on the last pay period that 

ends in the month of December. 
 

2.  Each full-time employee shall accrue vacation leave by pay period at the annual rate of work 
hours based on years of full time total service which is established in the schedules contained in 
Section 3 of this article.  Years of total full time service is defined to be the total of all periods of 
employment for the City of Delaware.  Any period of interruption of service due to resignation, 
layoff, disciplinary suspension, or discharge for cause, will not be included in the computation of 
total service.  Time not in paid status, excepting military leave, shall also be excluded in 
computing total service.  In computing years of service, the higher rate of accrual will be on the 
first day of the first pay period in which a year of service is completed. 

 
3.   The following vacation accrual schedules are established: 

 
 
 
Years of Total Service 

 
Vacation 
Hrs/Year 

 
Vacation 
Hrs/Pay 

 
   Start through 5 years 

 
80.6 

 
3.1 

 
   6 through 10 years 

 
119.6 

 
4.6 

 
   11 through 15 years 

 
161.2 

 
6.2 

 
   16 plus years 

 
200.2 

 
7.7 

 
4. Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum accrual shall become void as of the close of 

business on the last day of the last pay period that ends in the month of December. 
 

 
 
Years of Total Service 

 
Maximum Accrual 
of Vacation Hours 

 
   Start through 5 years 

 
241.8  

 
   6 through 10 years 

 
358.8  

 
   11 through 15 years 

 
483.6  

 
   16 plus years 

 
600.6  

 
5. Eligibility 

 
a. To be eligible for biweekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an employee must be in paid 

status for a minimum of 72 hours within that pay period; except that when an employee is 



9 
 

required to report for work and does so report and is denied work because of circumstances 
beyond their control, absence from work for the balance of that day shall not be construed as 
unpaid work status. 
 

b. An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from the City service through discharge, 
resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave to their credit, shall be 
paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave in lieu of granting a  vacation leave after his 
last day of active service with the City.  Such payment shall be  paid at the employee's hourly 
rate of pay at time of separation. 

 
c. When a member dies while in paid status in the City service, any unused vacation leave to their 

credit shall be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, or such other person the employee 
may have designated in writing. 

 
d. REQUESTS FOR VACATION ARE TO BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED, IN 

ADVANCE OF THE INTENDED USE, BY THE EMPLOYEE’S SUPERVISOR OR 
DEPARTMENT HEAD. 

 
e. To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits to the City of 

Delaware from prior employment inside the State of Ohio: 
1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from a public agency  

as defined by State law. 
2) The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited. 
3) Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
f. To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits to the  City of 

Delaware from prior employment outside the State of Ohio: 
1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from their  

immediate previous employer. 
2) Said previous employer must be a public agency. 
3) Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve months of  

termination from their immediate previous employer. 
4) The maximum amount of years of service that can be transferred is five (5)  

years. 
5) Present employees are not eligible. 
6) Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
g. An employee may elect to trade three (3) weeks of vacation time, or the equivalent of vacation 

time earned in one year, whichever is greater, for equivalent pay during the calendar year.  
Conversion of vacation time may occur in January, June, or December of each year.  An 
employee must inform the Department Head prior to August 1 of the year preceding the calendar 
year in which he intends to make the trade and must maintain at least forty (40) hour of vacation 
time in the employee’s account after said trade takes place. 

                                   
 
B. Sick Leave 

 
1.   Each City employee shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of four and six-tenths (4.6) hours for 

each completed eighty (80) hours of service.  An employee may use sick leave, upon approval of 
his or her Department Head, for absence due to personal illness, pregnancy, injury, exposure to 
contagious disease which could be communicated to other employees, and for illness or injury of 



10 
 

the employee's spouse, dependent children, step-children or parent.   It is the option of a 
supervisor, with cause, to require return to work documentation from the employee.    

 
2.   If an employee used 0 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that employee shall be 

credited with an additional three (3) vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between one (1) and eight (8) hours of sick leave in any one calendar year that employee shall be 
credited with an additional two (2) vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between nine (9) and sixteen (16) hours of sick leave in any one calendar year that member shall 
be credited with one (1) additional vacation  day the following year.  TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR 
THIS INCENTIVE, AN EMPLOYEE MUST BE ACTIVE FOR THE FIRST PAY 
PERIOD OF THE CALENDAR YEAR THROUGH THE LAST PAY PERIOD OF THE 
CALENDAR YEAR.  At the employee's option, any additional vacation days earned can be 
converted to pay in the months of January, June, or December of the year the additional vacation 
is earned.   

 
3.   To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior employment inside the 

State of Ohio: 
 
 a. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public agency as  
  defined by the State of Ohio.                                   
 

 b. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within ten (10)  
  years of termination from their previous employer.                         

 
 c. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred is 

 unlimited as long as it is accrued at a rate of no greater than 15 days per  
  year.                  
                                                

4. To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior employment outside the 
State of Ohio: 

 
 a. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from their  immediate  
  previous employer.                                              

 
  b. Said previous employer must be a public agency.                           

 
                          c. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve (12) 

months of termination from their immediate previous employer 
d. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred is six hundred 

(600).                                                            

                                       e. Any sick leave time so transferred shall have been accumulated at the rate of 
one and one-fourth days per month of employment.                  

 
  f. Present employees are not eligible.                                       

 
 

5.  Any City employee who has accumulated at least 100 days of sick leave credit may convert any 
excess thereof up to fifteen (15) days per year of sick leave to vacation leave on the basis two (2) 
sick leave days for one (1) day vacation leave.  Such annual conversion, if made, shall occur in 
December for the year of conversion. 



11 
 

 
6.   Any employee separated from City service for other than just cause shall be paid for all 

accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one (1) hour of pay for every two (2) hours of 
unused sick leave.  Total sick leave pay out cannot exceed sixteen (16) weeks pay. 

 
7.  For Employees Hired After November 1, 2013 

 
Each member hired by the City of Delaware after November 1, 2013 may transfer accrued sick 
leave hours from previous employment with any public agency but such sick leave hours will 
not be eligible for conversion or payment upon separation pursuant to section 5.  In addition, 
sick leave usage by members who transfer in sick leave hours will first be charged to sick leave 
hours accumulated while employed by the City of Delaware.  Members will only be eligible to 
utilize hours transferred in from prior public employment when they have no balance of sick 
leave available from sick leave accrued while employed by the City of Delaware. 
 

 
C. Holiday and Personal Days 

 
1. The following are designated as paid holidays for covered employees: 

 
 New Year's Day, January 1  Little Brown Jug Day, ½ day1 
 Martin Luther King Day   Thanksgiving Day 
 Memorial Day    Day after Thanksgiving Day 
 Independence Day, July 4  Day before Christmas, ½ day 
 Labor Day    Christmas Day, December 25 

 
2.   If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on vacation leave, such day shall 

not be charged against his/her vacation leave. 
 

3.  In the event that the Federal Government designates a specific day for any of the aforesaid 
holidays, then such holiday shall be observed by the City in accordance with such federal 
designation.  When any such holiday falls on a Saturday it shall be observed on the Friday 
immediately preceding, and when any such holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the 
Monday immediately following, provided that the employee works their last regularly scheduled 
work day preceding and following the holiday. 

 
4. For each of the holidays specified in Section 1 of this article on which a FLSA non-exempt 

employee works, they shall be entitled to holiday compensation equal to double the employee's 
regular rate of pay, except that the employee shall be entitled to holiday compensation at two and 
one-half times the employee's regular rate of pay if they work on any of the following holidays:  
New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas 
Day.  Only eight (8) hours per day will be used when computing the holiday rate.  Compensation 
for holidays may be in the form of cash or compensatory time off. 

 
     5.   Employees shall be credited with 32 hours of personal leave a year, EXCEPT FOR NEW 
HIRES WHO SHALL RECEIVE A PRORATED AMOUNT BASED ON HIRE DATE.  USE OF 
HOLIDAY COMPENSATORY TIME OR PERSONAL DAYS SHALL BE AT THE 

                                                           
1 In the event that an office remains open on a designated paid holiday all affected staff may take the corresponding time 
off for that holiday on another date, upon prior approval of their supervisor and/or department director. 



12 
 

EMPLOYEE’S DISCRETION WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE EMPLOYEE’S SUPERVISOR 
OR DEPARTMENT HEAD.   

 
6. All employees will be permitted to accumulate three (3) years' worth of holiday compensatory 

time and personal leave.  Once an employee accumulates the maximum allowable number of 
personal leave/holiday compensatory time then future personal leave/holiday compensatory time 
will be compensated for in cash, at the time they are earned.  An employee may elect to cash in up 
to one year's worth of personal leave each year (32 hours) in the months of January, June, or 
December each year.  An employee must inform his or her Department Head prior to August 1 of 
the year preceding the calendar year in which they intend to make the trade. 

 
 

D. Funeral Leave 
 

Each covered employee shall be entitled to funeral leave with pay according to the                        
following schedule: 

 
 
     
 
   Leave for Death of: 

 
Days/Hours of Leave 

 
Local Funeral 

 
Other Funeral 

 
Immediate Family Member 

 
1 - 3 Days 

 
1 - 5 Days 

Other Relative 
May Use Up To One 

Scheduled Work Day of 
Accrued Leave 

May Use Between 1-3 
Scheduled Work Days of 

Accrued Leave 

 
• One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but additional 

time up to the maximum shall be given only with approval of the 
Department Head.          

                           
• All leave time with approval of the Department Head.                

  
1. For the purposes of this section, "Immediate Family Member" means spouse, child, brother, 

sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-sister and step-parents, grandparents, grandchildren, 
sister-in-law, brother-in-law and parents-in-law. 

 
2. For the purposes of the article, "Local Funeral" means a funeral in the City of Delaware, or 

within fifty (50) miles thereof. 
 

 
E. Special Leave  

  
In addition to other leaves authorized herein, the City Manager may authorize a special leave of 
absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the employee and/ or the City.  

 
For exempt employees who are absent, if the absence cannot be covered or paid through appropriate 
leave time, said employees shall be subject to a reduction in pay, unless the absence is less than one 
workday.  

 



13 
 

 
F.  Jury Duty Leave 
  
 An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, or any adjoining 

county, will be paid his regular salary for each of his workdays during the period of time so served.  
Time so served shall be deemed active and continuous service for all purposes.  All jury fees received 
from the court of record shall be assigned to the City of Delaware. 

   
 When an employee has been released from Jury Duty they shall report back to work if more than two 

(2) hours are left in the workday 
 

G. Court Leave  
 
Time off with pay shall be allowed employees who are subpoenaed to attend any court of record in 
Delaware County, Delaware, Ohio, or any adjoining county, as a witness in civil matters, as they 
pertain to City matters.  All witness fees shall be assigned to the City of Delaware.   
 

       H. Injury Leave 
 

All regular full-time City employees shall be entitled to injury leave with pay, less any Worker's 
Compensation weekly salary benefits which he/she may be awarded by the Ohio Industrial 
Commission (OIC), for a period not to exceed 30 consecutive working days for employees working a 
40-hour workweek for each injury incurred in the performance of employment duties with the City, 
provided that the following procedures are followed: 

 
1. In all cases of personal injury to any regular full-time City employee as a result of the 

performance of employment duties, the employee shall complete an accident/injury 
investigation form and in conjunction with his/her Department Head shall report such 
injury to the Department of Administrative Services immediately and ensure that a claim is 
filed with the BWC. 

 
2. In the event that time off from work is required by the injured employee, they will be 

granted injury leave from the first day of injury, if the proper documentation is submitted to 
the City of Delaware.  This documentation will include, but not be limited to, a statement 
from the employee's physician, an Agreement covering Compensation Reimbursement, any 
necessary BWC forms and other documents as may be required by the City.  In the event 
that the BWC determines that the injury is NOT employment related, any time the 
employee is, or has been, absent from work shall be deducted first from any accrued sick 
leave, then accrued vacation, or accrued compensatory time off, other than compensatory 
time for overtime worked.   

 
3. During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under this policy, all normal 

benefits given to regular full-time City employees shall remain in force with no deductions 
to earned sick leave and/or vacation time. 

 
4. In all cases where more than 30 consecutive working days are needed for  injury leave for 

employees working a 40-hour workweek, the City Manager may extend such leave, if such 
necessity is determined to his/her satisfaction.  Each employee requesting such an extension 
under this policy may be required to furnish a current affidavit from a licensed physician 
setting forth the need for the extension. 



14 
 

SECTION III - INSURANCE 
 

A. Hospitalization, Surgical and Major Medical 
  
The City will continue to provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical and major medical coverage 
for all full-time members and their dependents.  Beginning January 1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, 
the City may implement a Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).  The Plan if implemented will provide 
for the following deductibles and co-payments as follows: 

 
 
 
  

 
 NETWORKS 
 PROVIDERS 

 
 NON-NETWORK 
 PROVIDERS 

 
Annual Deductible  Single 

 Family 

 
None 
None 

 
$ 500.00 
$1000.00  

 
Office Visit Co-pay 

 
$10.00 

 
N/A 

 
 
ER Visit  
 
Co-Pay 

   
$50.00 unless admitted into the 
hospital, otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of the 
deductible 

  
N/A 

Co-insurance  
 
Single 
 
Family 

 
 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
50/50% of first $10,000 

 

1. Contributions will be deducted from the member's gross income prior to taxes, subject to 
compliance with all applicable tax regulations.   

 
2. Effective January 1, 2013 employees will contribute to the cost of the health benefit plan in 

an amount equal to 15% of the established monthly COBRA rate utilized by the City.  
Annual changes to the calculated COBRA rate will be applied to the monthly employee 
contributions on the first full pay-period in April of each year.  Contributions will be 
deducted from all members in a paid status based on twelve (12) months times the monthly 
rate, divided by the number of pay periods per year.  An example would be $56.95/mo. x 12 
= $683.40, $683.40/26 pay periods = $26.28 per pay period.  In the event federal tax 
regulations are changed so that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will 
not be responsible to pick up the member's tax burden.   
 

       The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options through a  
       spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of $100.00 per month.   
       Families who have both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will  
       not be eligible to opt out of the plan.  One spouse will carry the cost of the plan  
       minus the opt out payment.  The employee will provide proof that they do in fact  
        have other coverage before the City will drop that employee's current coverage.   



15 
 

       The City will continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under the  
       employee's spouse's insurance.  A member may elect to return to coverage under  
       the City's insurance plan by notifying the City in writing of any substantial   
       changes in their qualifying family circumstances.  The member must give thirty  
       (30) days notice of his or her election to return to the City's plan, except in the  
       case of an emergency, such as sudden loss of spouse's coverage, divorce or other          
       change in family status.  The plan will comply with Internal Revenue Code   
       Section 125 which governs this matter.   

 
3. Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be compensated as follows: 

 
No Coverage     $100 per month 
Maintain Prescription Only   $  60 per month 
Maintain Dental Only    $  65 per month 
Maintain Prescription and Dental  $  55 per month 

* An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only. 
 

4. Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days notice of an 
employee’s desire to drop coverage.  A form will be provided which will contain all 
information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan.  The form must be signed and 
returned to the Department of Administrative Services.  Until such time that an employee is 
effectively dropped from City coverage, they will be subject to any payroll contributions. 

 
5. All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other pay on 

employee's paycheck.  This income will not be included in income subject to OPERS 
contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes. 

 
 

B. Prescription Plan 
 
The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their dependents.  
 
The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher amount and the employee paying 
the lesser amount of prescription coinsurance:  

• 80/20% for generic drugs  
• 50/50% name brand drugs with a $25 co-pay for each disbursement 

 
The mail order benefits will be the following:  

• 90/10% for generic drugs and  
• 75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25 co-pay.   

 
The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250 annually for single coverage and 
$500 for family annually for prescription benefits, however, the $25 co-pay for retail name brand drugs 
will not count towards the calculation of the $250 or the $500 coinsurance maximum and will always 
apply even after an employee reaches the coinsurance maximum expenditure.  

 
C. Dental Care Plan 

 
The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members.  Please refer to the Plan Document 
for specific covered services 



16 
 

 
D. Life Insurance 

 
The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 

Department Heads = $50,000 
Assistant Fire and Police Chiefs = $50,000 
Pay Grades M11 through M20 = $40,000 
Police Captain and Fire Captain = $40,000 
Pay Grades M 1 through M10 = $30,000 

 
 

E. Vision Plan 
 
The City will provide a vision plan for members and their dependents covered by this Summary of 
Benefits.  The City will contribute $6.00 per month on behalf of the employee.  The employee will be 
responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of the coverage selected. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 
 

SECTION IV 
OTHER COMPENSATION 

 
A. Longevity Compensation 
 

Employees shall receive, in addition to other pay called for herein, Longevity Compensation based on 
completed years of service according to the following table: 

 

After five (5) years of continuous service $550.00 / year 
After ten (10) years of continuous service $750.00 / year 
After fifteen (15) years of continuous service $950.00 / year 
After twenty (20) years of continuous service $1150.00 / year 

 

1. Longevity compensation shall be paid, in accordance with the above schedule, in two (2) separate 
lump sum payments during the first pay periods in June and December of each year. 

2. Upon termination of service for any reason, employees who are eligible for longevity pay under this 
section (or in the event of death, the surviving spouse or estate) will be paid, as part of their terminal 
pay, the final partial year of longevity compensation, prorated to the number of months completed 
during said partial year since the employee’s last payment date. 

3. For the purpose of this section, continuous years of service shall include approved military leave. 
   

B. Automobile Expense Reimbursement  
 
Employees shall receive reimbursement for business use of their personal vehicle.           
Reimbursement will be in accordance with Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations for not-taxable 
reimbursements and shall be at the IRS per mile reimbursement rate in effect when the business use 
miles were incurred.  Department Heads as department heads employed by the City prior to January 1, 
1999 who had received a monthly automobile allowance will only be reimbursed for business use of 
their personal vehicle for travel outside the City limits.  

 
C. Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance 

 
All employees covered under this pay plan in Pay Grades M1 through M9 who are not provided with a 
uniform shall receive an annual clothing allowance of $150.00.  Such allowance shall be utilized to 
purchase necessary work related items of clothing such as, but not limited to:  steel toed boots, coats, 
rain gear, rubber boots, gloves etc.  All purchases of clothing shall be the responsibility of the 
employee.  Upon hire the clothing allowance will be prorated based on the full months of service for 
that year. 

 
D. Call In Pay  

 
Both exempt and nonexempt employees shall be eligible for "on call" compensation for weekly periods 
when assigned the responsibility of directing Parks, Public Works, or Utility personnel in response to 
service requests during non-scheduled work periods.  Employees assigned to this "on call" status shall 
serve in this posture for weekly time periods as authorized by the respective Department Head.  Said 
employees shall be responsible for responding to after hour service requests.  Employees assigned to an 
"on call" status shall be compensated at a weekly rate of between $25.00 and $50.00 as determined by 
the City Manager.  On call compensation shall be paid in addition to regular and overtime wages earned 
during the pay period.  On call assignments will be posted in June and December of each year for the 
following six-month period.  Changes to the schedule must be made in advance with approval of the 
Department Head. 



18 
 

E. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
 
       ALL FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES WITH ONE OR MORE YEARS OF CONTINUOUS 

ACTIVE SERVICE SHALL BE ELIGIBLE FOR A REIMBURSEMENT OF 
INSTRUCTIONAL FEES FOR UNDERGRADUATE OR GRADUATE COURSES 
TOWARDS A DEGREE OR CERTIFICATION, PRE-APPROVED BY THE CITY 
AND VOLUNTARILY UNDERTAKEN BY THE EMPLOYEE.  THE TUITION 
REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS: 

 
1. ALL COURSES MUST BE TAKEN DURING OTHER THAN SCHEDULED 

WORKING HOURS.  ANY SITUATION WHICH, IN THE DISCRETION OF 
THE DEPARTMENT HEAD, WOULD REQUIRE AN EMPLOYEE’S 
PRESENCE ON THE JOB SHALL TAKE COMPLETE AND FINAL 
PRECEDENCE OVER ANY TIME SCHEDULED FOR COURSES.  ALL 
COURSES ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE DEPARTMENT HEAD 
AND/OR CITY MANAGER.  THERE MUST BE A DIRECT CORRELATION 
BETWEEN THE EMPLOYEE’S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
THE COURSES TAKEN OR THE DEGREE PROGRAM PURSUED.  THE 
CITY MANAGER, OR HIS DESIGNEE, HAS THE SOLE AND FINAL 
DISCRETION TO APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE TUITION 
REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS. 

2. ANY FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM ANY GOVERNMENT OR 
PRIVATE AGENCY AVAILABLE TO THE EMPLOYEE, WHETHER 
APPLIED FOR AND REGARDLESS OF WHEN SUCH ASSISTANCE MAY 
HAVE BEEN RECEIVED, SHALL BE DEDUCTED IN THE ENTIRE 
AMOUNT FROM THE TUITION REIMBURSEMENT THE EMPLOYEE IS 
ELIGIBLE FOR UNDER THIS SECTION.  IF AN EMPLOYEE’S TUITION 
IS FULLY COVERED BY ANOTHER GOVERNMENTAL OR PRIVATE 
AGENCY, THEN THE EMPLOYEE IS NOT ENTITLED TO ANY 
PAYMENT FROM THE CITY. 

3. EMPLOYEES SEEKING AUTHORIZATION OF A TUITION 
REIMBURSEMENT MUST FIRST SUBMIT TO THE DEPARTMENT 
HEAD FOR REVIEW, PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30 OF THE YEAR 
PRECEDING WHEN THE CLASSES ARE TO BE TAKEN, ALL 
NECESSARY INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED 
COURSE DEGREE TO BE PURSUED, THE EDUCATIONAL 
INSTITUTION AND THE EMPLOYEE’S BEST ESTIMATE OF COURSE 
COSTS, DATES AND TIMES.  PRE-APPROVAL IS SUBJECT TO 
AVAILABLE APPROPRIATIONS.   

4. COURSES MUST BE TAKEN AT ACCREDITED COLLEGES, 
UNIVERSITIES, TECHNICAL AND BUSINESS INSTITUTES OR AT 
THEIR ESTABLISHED EXTENSION CENTERS, AND THESE MUST BE 
FIRST APPROVED BY THE CITY.  SEMINARS, CONFERENCES AND 
WORKSHOPS ARE NOT INCLUDED. 

5. REIMBURSEMENT FOR TUITION WILL BE MADE WHEN THE 



19 
 

EMPLOYEE SATISFACTORILY COMPLETES (ATTAINS AT LEAST A 
GRADE OF “C” OR ITS EQUIVALENT FOR UNDERGRADUATE WORK 
AND A GRADE OF AT LEAST “B” OR ITS EQUIVALENT FOR 
GRADUATE WORK) A COURSE AND PRESENTS AN OFFICIAL 
CERTIFICATE OR ITS EQUIVALENT AND A RECEIPT OF PAYMENT 
OR A COPY OF THE UNPAID BILL FROM THE INSTITUTION 
CONFIRMING COMPLETION OF THE APPROVED COURSE.   

6. NO REIMBURSEMENT WILL BE GRANTED FOR BOOKS, PAPER, 
SUPPLIES OF WHATEVER NATURE, TRANSPORTATION, MEALS, OR 
ANY OTHER EXPENSE CONNECTED WITH ANY COURSE, EXCEPT 
THE COST OF TUITION FEES OUTLINED ABOVE. 

7. ANY EMPLOYEE PARTICIPATING IN THE TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
PROGRAM WHO RESIGNS (EXCEPT RESIGNATION DUE TO 
DISABILITY), RETIRES (EXCEPT RETIREMENT DUE TO DISABILITY), 
OR IS DISCHARGED FOR CAUSE MUST REPAY THE TUITION 
REIMBURSEMENT PAID BY THE CITY FOR COURSES TAKEN LESS 
THAN TWO YEARS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF TERMINATION OR 
DISCHARGE.  IF NECESSARY, THIS AMOUNT WILL BE DEDUCTED 
FROM THE EMPLOYEE’S TERMINAL LEAVE PAY OR FINAL 
PAYCHECK. 

  



20 
 

SECTION V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Personnel Files 

  
The official personnel files of all employees shall be maintained in the Department of Administrative 
Services (DAS).  All employee personnel records shall include but not limited to, applications, 
performance evaluations, promotions, acts of reward and recognition, disciplinary actions and any other 
pertinent information pertaining to the job performance of the individual employee. Copies therein shall 
be available to the employee.   

  
DAS shall be responsible for the care and maintenance of all personnel files and records.  Department 
heads shall be responsible for promptly forwarding all pertinent personnel information and 
documentation to DAS.  Employees may, during normal office hours, review their official personnel 
files. 

 
B. Parks and Recreation Credit 

 
 The City shall provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a Jack Florance Pool  membership, 

City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals (shelters or Hilborn Room).  The amount of 
the credit shall be $60.00.  Employees shall abide by the stipulations set forth by the managing 
organization both in definition and restrictions.  This credit amount is fixed, regardless of changes in 
membership fees that may occur.  In addition, the City will provide to each member a 20% discount on 
all individual registrations for City recreation programs. 

 
 Credits may not be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals beyond the calendar year for 

which it is issued.  Credits will not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered at the time of 
registration/ purchase.  Credits are non-transferrable.   

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE:  12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-80    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
CITY MANAGER, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
One change included in the last update to the City Manager’s contract (adopted 
with ordinance 17-62) was to shift the effective date for compensation to 
coincide with the effective date of the Management Pay Plan.  A clause in the 
2017 contract allows the City Manager to convert the current car allowance 
into salary in a cost neutral manner.  Instead of a cost of living increase, the 
2018 City Manager salary reflects the conversion without a cost neutral 
adjustment.  This approach results in a smaller overall increase in salary.  
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
And ordinance is required to change the City Manager’s compensation. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Conversion of the Automobile Allowance included in the 2018 Budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.  If legislation is taken to a third reading per Council’s readings policy, 
passage on January 8, 2018 would permit an effective date of December 27, 
2017, as January 9, 2018 will be the end of the pay period.  An emergency 
clause will remain necessary.   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Draft agreement 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-80 
  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY MANAGER, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

  
WHEREAS, the employment agreement with the City Manager provides 

that the compensation of the City Manager shall be reviewed annually; and 
 

WHEREAS, the effective date of changes to compensation was adjusted 
to coincide with the effective date of changes to the Management Pay Plan in 
the contract authorized by Ordinance 17-62; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council has reviewed the salary and benefits of the City 
Manager and has made the necessary changes to the employment agreement 
(attached).  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
  

SECTION 1. An employment agreement reflecting the agreed upon 
changes is authorized to be executed by the City Manager and the Mayor, 
representing City Council. 

  
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 3.   Emergency Clause:  This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 27, 2017 which coincides 
with the new calendar year. Therefore this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 

 



PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

The Council of the City of Delaware, Ohio, hereinafter referred to as “City” or 
“City Council” has offered the position of City Manager to R. Thomas Homan, 
and Mr. Homan, hereinafter referred to as “Manager” or “Mr. Homan” has 
accepted the offer of employment under the following terms agreeable to both 
parties. 

 
1. Beginning with the date of employment, the City will compensated Mr. 

Homan as City Manager of Delaware and Mr. Homan will execute all the 
duties and responsibilities of City Manager set forth in the Delaware City 
Charter, Code of Ordinances and requirements of the City Council. 

 
2. The Manager’s salary will be at the hourly rate of $68.2071.66 effective 

February 2December 27, 2017. This represents an increase of 
approximately 3% over the 2016 salarythe conversion of the 2017 car 
allowance and no additional increase to reflect that converting the car 
allowance to salary is not cost neutral. 

 

3. The Council and Mr. Homan will establish annual performance goals and 
objectives. Any pay increases during Mr. Homan’s tenure with the City 
will be based upon performance evaluations. Evaluations are anticipated 
every six months following Mr. Homan’s date of employment. One six- 
month evaluation may be primarily for discussion of the City Manager’s 
past performance and performance planning, while the alternate 
evaluation may be concerned primarily with matters of compensation for 
the City Manager. The method of evaluation will be formulated by the 
Council and Mr. Homan and conducted by the Council. 

 
4. Mr. Homan will serve as City Manager at the will of the City Council and 

nothing herein will be taken to suggest or imply guaranteed tenure. 
 
5. In the event the City terminates the services of Mr. Homan or requests 

his resignation at any time without cause, the City will pay to Mr. Homan 
a lump sum severance payment equal to ninety (90) days base salary and 
benefits, payable not later than the next regular pay date. No such lump 
sum severance payment will be paid upon a termination for cause. All 
accrued vacation, holiday, compensatory time, one-half the value of sick 
leave, other accrued benefits, retirement and group health insurance 
benefits will be paid to Mr. Homan at the same time, calculated at the 
rate of pay or benefit in effect upon notice of termination. The Manager 
will provide the City not less than 30 days written notice of his intent to 
resign his position wholly voluntarily, whereupon the Manager 
understands that he will not receive the lump sum severance payment 
equal to ninety (90) days base salary and benefits described above. All 
accrued vacation, holiday, compensatory time, one-half the value of sick 
leave, other accrued benefits, retirement and group health insurance 



benefits will be paid to the date of termination and calculated at the rate 
of pay or benefit in effect upon notice of termination. 

 
6. The Manager will remain a resident of the City during employment. 

 
7. The City manager’s automobile allowance paid for use of the Manager’s 

personal vehicle for City business was converted into salary in 2018.   
The City will pay to the Manager an automobile allowance of $600.00 per 
month for the use of the Manager’s personal vehicle for City business, 
without requiring mileage records or expense receipts. In the event the 
City Manager uses a city vehicle for travel, the automobile allowance for 
the following month will be prorated based on the number of days a city 
vehicle is used. It is the City Manager’s responsibility to track this 
information. The allowance will be paid on the same schedule as payroll 
for other City employees. While the use of the city manager’s vehicle 
is included as part of salary, Mmileage may be reimbursed to the 
Manager for travel on behalf of the City beyond a 100-mile radius of 
Delaware. The City manager may elect to convert the automobile 
allowance into the base pay in a cost neutral manner. 

7.  
8. The City will pay the expense of a mobile telephone for the Manager. 

 
9. The City will provide the Manager paid coverage for health, dental and 

prescription benefits in terms and amounts provided other employees of 
the City generally, effective upon the first day of the month following his 
date of employment. 

 
10. The City will provide the Manager paid annual vacation earned at the 

rate of 25 working days per year. Any use of vacation leave credits by 
the Manager will be following written notice to the Council. The City will 
pay for all accrued and unused vacation days to Mr. Homan upon 
separation from the City employment, for any reason, at his then current 
rate of pay. 

 
11. The Manager will be permitted to engage in occasional teaching, writing, 

speaking or consulting performed on his time off, even if outside 
compensation is provided for such services, provided that, in no case, is 
any activity permitted which would present a conflict of interest with the 
City of Delaware. In the event that over night travel is required for such 
non-City business, the City Council will be notified in advance. 

 
12. The City will provide Mr. Homan four (4) personal days per anniversary 

year for personal business, credited at the beginning of each subsequent 
year. Upon termination from the City for any reason, accrued personal 
days will not be compensated. 

 
13. The City will provide Mr. Homan paid sick leave in the amounts earned 

at a rate of 4.6 hours for each completed 80 hours of service. The City 
will pay for one-half the value of unused sick leave to Mr. Homan upon 

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.5", Space Before:  0.05 pt

Formatted: Body Text, Justified, Indent: Left:  0.08",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.08", Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.07" + Indent at:  0.57", Tab stops:  0.58", Left



separation from the City employment for any reason, at his then current 
rate of pay. 

 
14. The City will provide fully paid coverage for Mr. Homan of workers 

compensation and unemployment compensation insurance from his first 
date of employment. 

 
15. The City will afford Mr. Homan paid funeral leave in the amounts 

provided for all other City employees generally, upon his attendance at 
the funeral or memorial observance of any member of his family in the 
first degree of sanguinity, and of his spouse and parents-in-law. 

 
16. The City will provide Mr. Homan group life insurance from his date of 

employment in the amount of $125,000 with double indemnity for 
accidental death or dismemberment. 

 
17. The City will pay Mr. Homan the monthly amount of $131.67 toward the 

premium expense for long term disability insurance. 
 
18. The City will provide Mr. Homan paid holiday leave on the same annual 

schedule as that provided for other City employees generally. 
 
19. The City will pay the expense of Mr. Homan’s membership in ICMA and 

OCMA and for his attendance at national and state conferences, within 
an amount budgeted each year. 

 
20. The City will anticipate a recommendation from Mr. Homan for inclusion 

in each annual budget amounts to be used at Mr. Homan’s discretion 
for: 

 
a. Educational courses, conferences and workshops directly related 

to Mr. Homan’s work as City Manager, including expenses directly 
related to his attendance at such educational programs. 

b. Membership dues and subscriptions for Mr. Homan’s involvement 
in professional organizations that are directly in the interest of the 
City and Mr. Homan’s performance on behalf of the City. 

c. Routine business expenses of the City Manager directly related to 
his performance of official duties. The City Manager’s membership 
in Rotary requires him to purchase lunches at meetings, and his 
salary has been increased (already reflected in wages) to reflect 
that expense. 

 
21. Effective December 21, 2011, the City increased Mr. Homan’s base salary 

by 7.3% to reflect the fact that the City no longer pays the City Manager’s 
share of the PERS premium. 



22. On the pay period that includes February 2, 2017,The City manager is 
entitled to  the City will contribute the sum of 5.5% of the base hourly 
salary rate of pay included in Section 2 earned from February 2,  2016 
to February 2, 2017, the City will contribute the sum of 5.5% of Mr. 
Homan’s base salary earned during the prior year (February 2, 2016 
to February 2,  2017) to  be contributed to the ICMA-RC investment 
program. In the event the City Manager separates from service before 
the year is complete, this contribution will be prorated to reflect the 
period of employment of the City Manager and made upon separation. 

 
23. The City will indemnify and hold harmless Mr. Homan from liability for 

any claims, demands or judgments arising out of an act or omission 
occurring in the lawful performance of his duties as City Manager. The 
City will pay the cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of Mr. 
Homan by the City Charter, City Ordinances or Ohio statues. 

 
24. All other provisions of City ordinances, regulations or rules relating to 

personnel matters of non-union employees of the City and terms of the 
Management Pay Plan, not contrary to the terms listed in this 
memorandum or to the City Charter, will also apply to Mr. Homan during 
his employment as City Manager. 

 
25. Mr. Homan’s initial date of employment is February 2, 1999.  Starting with 

2018, the effective date for Mr. Homan’s compensation will coincide with 
the effective date of the Management Pay Plan.  

 
26. Any portion of this memorandum in conflict with the City Charter or any 

State, or Federal law, will be considered null and void. The remaining 
provisions of this agreement will remain in full force and effect. The law 
of the State of Ohio will govern the interpretation of this agreement. 

 
27. The City and Mr. Homan agree that this Agreement accurately reflects 

the terms of employment for the City Manager position offered by the 
City and accepted by Mr. Homan. 

 
28. Unless otherwise stated, the terms of this Agreement shall be retroactive 

to February 2, 2017. 



 

The parties have evidenced their agreement by affixing their signatures below 
this day of____, 2017. 

 
 
Council of the City of Delaware, Ohio City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor R. Thomas Homan 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 
 

 

Darren Shulman 
City Attorney 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-81    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       January 8, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND SERVICE 
CHARGES.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Under Delaware Codified Ordinance, Section 197.01, proposed Fee Schedule 
adjustments are submitted to City Council for consideration in conjunction 
with the annual budget.  This year’s adjustments include an increase to cover 
the cost of water and sewer permit processing, codification of the $100 per 
caliper inch tree bank fee, addition of the cost of a water pit, and a new section 
documenting the facility rental fees to coincide with the City potentially taking 
over scheduling of the facilities.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Annual review is required by code.  Recommended changes submitted by 
department staff.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Minimal, will allow the City to recoup cost.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
Dave Efland, Community Affairs Coordinator 
Brad Stanton, Public Utilities Director  
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval after Public Hearing 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-81 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF 
FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES. 

 
WHEREAS, as part of the yearly review of the fees established in Delaware 

Codified Ordinance Section 197.01, it has been determined that the fees should 
be added to the schedule and existing fees revised. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  The Refuse Collection portion of 197.02 is amended to update 
and add new schedules as follows: 

 
197.02 FEE SCHEDULE 

 
Community Development/Construction 

SOURCE OF FEE FEE TITLE AMOUNT 
1321.01, 1321.11 One-, Two-, or Three-

Family Dwellings 
Inspections and Permits 

In addition to the fees below, the State of Ohio 
requires the City to collect a 1% surcharge on 
certain permits below and as may be amended by 
the State of Ohio:  
Building Permit Plan Review - New Construction: 
$50.00  
Building Permit - New Construction Inspection: 
$350.00 plus $0.05 per s.f.  
Building Permit - Porches, Residential Additions, 
Remodeling, Alterations and Accessory Buildings 
up to 1,000 sq. ft. Inspection: $75.00 plus $0.05 
per s.f.  
Plumbing Inspection: $75.00 for new builds  
$35.00 for minor alterations  
Water heaters, heating, ventilating, and cooling 
equipment/systems (HVAC) Inspection: $150.00 
for new home construction and additions 1,000 s.f. 
and greater;  
$50.00 for minor alterations to existing systems, 
renovations, and additions under 1,000 s.f.  
$25.00 for residential appliance replacements 
including water heaters and HVAC.  
Electrical: $50.00 for service upgrade, minor 
alterations to existing residential buildings, pools, 
generators, and additions under 1,000 s.f.  
For New Construction and additions and 
alterations 1,000 s.f. and greater:  
 $100.00 for buildings up to 1,000 s.f.  
 $100.00 plus $0.02 per s.f. for structures 1,001—
2,000 total s.f.  
  $100.00 plus $0.03 per s.f. for structures 2,001—
3,000 total s.f.  

https://library.municode.com/oh/delaware/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTTHIRTEENBUCO_CH1321PEFE_1321.01OHRMIDW
https://library.municode.com/oh/delaware/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTTHIRTEENBUCO_CH1321PEFE_1321.11MIIN


  $100.00 plus $0.04 per s.f. for structures 3,001 
total s.f. structures and greater  
Insulation: $75.00 for new construction homes and 
additions over 1,000 s.f.  
Gas Line Inspection: $70.00 for new construction 
homes and additions over 1,000 s.f.  
Reissuance of lost permit or inspection card: 
$50.00  
Reinspection: Upon the third inspection for the 
same task/item - $75.00  
Occupancy Permit/Certificate:  
 Temporary - $125.00  
 Final - $75.00  
Excavation to connect to utilities: $50.00  
Water/Sewer Permit Processing: $25.00 35 
Subsiding: $50.00  
Fireplace/Fireplace like Device Permit and 
Inspection: $35.00  
Grade Inspections: $100.00  
Re-roof: $50.00  
Residential Plan Revision: $75.00  
Miscellaneous Permit: $35.00 

1168.07 FEE TO TREE BANK 
FUND IN LIEU OF 

PLANTING 

$100 PER CALIPER INCH OF 
QUALIFYING REMOVED MAJOR 
TREES AS REQUIRED IN CHAPTER 
1168 – TREE PRESERVATION 
REGULATIONS. 

 
 
 
 

UTILITY SERVICES 
SOURCE OF FEE FEE TITLE AMOUNT 

913.13 

Meter Rules and 
Regulations 

Certain water meters shall be provided by the Utility Department, Water Division at 
the cost of the meter to the City. This is currently $160.00 for a ⅝ — ¾ meter. 
 
IF A WATER METER PIT IS NECESSARY, THE CITY WILL CHARGE 
THE COST OF THE PIT.  THIS COST IS CURRENTLY $300. 

 

FACILITY RENTAL FEES 
SOURCE OF 

FEE FEE TITLE AMOUNT 

 
JACK FLORANCE POOL 

RENTAL 
 

1-149 PEOPLE: $250/HR 
150+ PEOPLE: $300/HR 

 BALL FIELDS AT SMITH 
OR MINGO PARKS 

$25 FOR FIRST GAME, $5 EACH ADDITIONAL 
GAME. $100 DEPOSIT RETURNED IF FIELD IS 

https://library.municode.com/oh/delaware/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTNINESTUTPUSECO_TITTHREEUT_CH913WARE_913.13MERURE


FACILITY RENTAL FEES 
SOURCE OF 

FEE FEE TITLE AMOUNT 

 
JACK FLORANCE POOL 

RENTAL 
 

1-149 PEOPLE: $250/HR 
150+ PEOPLE: $300/HR 

 UNDAMAGED AND CLEAN.  $20/HR FOR 
LIGHTS 

 HILLBORN AND BIXBY 
ROOMS 

$20/HR 
HILLBORN KITCHEN: ADDITIONAL $25/HR 
SET UP/TEAR DOWN: $40/ROOM 

 

OUTDOOR PICNIC 
SHELTER  AND GAZEBO 

RENTALS 
 
 

WEEKDAY (MON-THURS) 
SINGLE BLOCK: $20 
ALL DAY: $40 
 
WEEKEND (FRI-SAT-SUN) 
SINGLE BLOCK: $50 
ALL DAY: $100 
 

 
MINGO 3 

SEASON/VETERANS PARK 
SPRAY & PLAY SHELTERS 

WEEKDAY (MON-THURS) 
SINGLE BLOCK: $40 
ALL DAY: $80 
 
WEEKEND (FRI-SAT-SUN) 
SINGLE BLOCK: $60 
ALL DAY: $120 
 

 
SECTION 2. All other sections of the fee schedule remain unchanged. 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO: 18  

ORDINANCE NO: 17-82  

READING: FIRST  

DATE: 12/11/2017 

RESOLUTION NO: 

PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR PULTE HOMES APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE COMMUNITIES AT GLENROSS SECTION 12 FOR 48 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON 14.769 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED SOUTH OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND WEST OF 
WINTERBOURNE DRIVE ON SOLSTICE ROAD AND HOLLY BERRY LANE. 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan 
requirements of the zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 6, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-82 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR PULTE HOMES APPROVING A 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE COMMUNITIES 
AT GLENROSS SECTION 12 FOR 48 SINGLE FAMILY 
LOTS ON 14.769 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 
PMU (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED SOUTH OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND WEST OF  
WINTERBOURNE DRIVE ON SOLSTICE ROAD AND 
HOLLY BERRY LANE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 6, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Pulte Homes for the 
Communities at Glenross Section 12 for 48 single family lots on 14.769 acres on 
property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located south of Cheshire Road and west of 
Winterbourne Drive on Solstice Road and Holly Berry Lane (PC 2017-2814).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Pulte Homes for the 
Communities at Glenross Section 12 for 48 single family lots on 14.769 acres on 
property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located south of Cheshire Road and west of 
Winterbourne Drive on Solstice Road and Holly Berry Lane, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

3. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards and house size in the approved development text and per 
applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

4. A street tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

5. The pedestrian path within the southern reserve area (Lot 12219) shall 
be installed by the developer that meets minimum City development 



requirements and is located within an easement dedicated to the City 
and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. 

6. The applicant shall allocate space in reserve area (lot 12219) for a 
potential pocket park in Section 13. 

7. This section of the Communities of Glenross Subdivision is in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority, subject to the single family 
lot transportation fee ($1,000 per dwelling unit) in effect at the time of 
building permit issuance per the pre-annexation agreement and is 
subject to the South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional capacity 
charge of $3,200 per dwelling units. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____  
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 19    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-83    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR PULTE HOMES APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT FOR THE COMMUNITIES AT GLENROSS SECTION 12 FOR 48 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON 14.769 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED SOUTH OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND WEST OF  
WINTERBOURNE DRIVE ON SOLSTICE ROAD AND HOLLY BERRY LANE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111.04 Final Plat requirements of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 6, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-83 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR PULTE HOMES APPROVING A 
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR THE COMMUNITIES AT 
GLENROSS SECTION 12 FOR 48 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON 14.769 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-2 PMU 
(ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED SOUTH OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND WEST OF  
WINTERBOURNE DRIVE ON SOLSTICE ROAD AND 
HOLLY BERRY LANE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 6, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat for Pulte Homes for the 
Communities at Glenross Section 12 for 48 single family lots on 14.769 acres on 
property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located south of Cheshire Road and west of 
Winterbourne Drive on Solstice Road and Holly Berry Lane (PC 2017-2815). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat for Pulte Homes for the 
Communities at Glenross Section 12 for 48 single family lots on 14.769 acres on 
property zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located south of Cheshire Road and west of 
Winterbourne Drive on Solstice Road and Holly Berry Lane, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

3. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards and house size in the approved development text and per 
applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

4. A street tree plan shall be submitted and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

5. The pedestrian path within the southern reserve area (Lot 12219) shall 
be installed by the developer that meets the minimum City development 



requirements and located within an easement dedicated to the City and 
shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. 

6. The applicant shall allocate space in reserve area (lot 12219) for a 
potential pocket park in Section 13 if required. 

7. This section of the Communities of Glenross Subdivision is in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority, subject to the single family 
lot transportation fee ($1,000 per dwelling unit) in effect at the time of 
building permit issuance per the pre-annexation agreement and is 
subject to the South East Highland Sanitary Sewer additional capacity 
charge of $3,200 per dwelling units. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE: 12/11/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-84    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 
APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF 
WESTFIELD SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE 
SUBDIVISION.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 6, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-84 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT 
UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-
3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST 
WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST 
EAST OF LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of December 6, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Treplus Communities 
for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 
acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield 
Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision (2017-2904). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Final Development Plan for Treplus Communities 
for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 
acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield 
Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. A sidewalk shall be located on one side of the private streets as 
determined with the Final Development Plan. 

3. The City shall require the developer to construct and dedicate the bike 
path along the frontage of the subject property along SR 37 per the 
adopted Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2017 and City Engineers 
requirements.   

4. The proposed apartment buildings shall achieve compliance with the 
design standards of the approved development text. All the limestone 



on the buildings shall be constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone 
or equivalent ledgestone veneer as proposed by the applicant. 

5.  The retaining wall on the north side of the retention pond facing SR 
37 shall be constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent 
ledgestone veneer as proposed by the applicant. 

6. The perimeter buffering along the northern and western property lines 
adjacent to the single family homes shall be a minimum 12 foot high 
continuous buffer consisting of evergreen trees (in a staggered 
alignment) and at least a 3 foot high earthen mound to buffer the 
single family residents to the north and west.  If the mound height is 
greater than 3 feet, the trees on that portion of the mound may be 
smaller so long as the total is at least 12 feet high. However, in no 
case shall a tree be less than 6 feet in height regardless of mound 
height. The area on the west property line where the subject site is 
significantly above the adjacent residential lots may require a section 
of 8-10 foot tall evergreen trees if a mound is not possible as 
determined by the City Engineer. 

7. The amount of caliper inches of trees preserved (2,120) and trees 
removed (2,079) shall be as submitted on the tree survey to achieve 
compliance with the Tree Preservation Regulations in Chapter 1168 
and approved development text.  

8. The tree preservation areas shall be located within an easement with 
the appropriate language that would need to be reviewed and 
approved by staff and then be recorded at the county. 

9. The base on the two ground signs shall have a limestone base 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as 
approved by staff with a stone cap.  

10. The Public Works Department shall provide residential pick-up 
service to this project using individual tip cart collection. The trash 
service will consist of tip carts picked up at the bottom of each 
driveway with service provided by the City of Delaware. In the event 
units are clustered around parking courts (3 such area are 
preliminary proposed), the developer shall provide a common concrete 
area adjacent to the primary street and the developer (or management 
company) shall ensure the tip carts are moved to this area for the 
designated pick up as with the other units and then moved back to 
the units themselves. 

11. The private street names shall need to submitted and approved by the 
City and other appropriate agencies.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 



formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







































































































































































City Manager Report 20171211 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: December 7, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  

November 21 
* Strand Board Meeting 
November 27 
* Rotary 
* City Council Meeting 
November 29 
* Meeting with Erin Fletcher 
December 2 
* Budget Work Session 
December 4 
* Rotary 
*  Budget Work Session 
December 6, 2017 
* Strand Tour 
 
 

 
 



 
  Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

     1 2 
3 4 

City Offices 
Closed 

5 6 
Civil Service -3 
Planning-7 

7 8 9 

10 11 
Council-7 

12 13 
BZA-7 

14 15 16 
17 18 19 

Parks & Rec - 
cancelled 

20 21 
City Offices Close 
at NOON 

22 23 

24 25 
Council-7 

26 
Shade Tree-7 

27 
HPC-7 

28 29 30 

       

 2017 

Se
pt

em
be

r 



 
  Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 
Council CIP Work 
Session -6 

3 
Council CIP Work 
Session if needed-
6 
Public Works-
cancelled 

4 
Civil Service 
Commission 3 
 
Planning 7 

5 6 7 

8 9 
Council 7 

10 
Sister City 6 

11 
BZA 7-cancelled 

12 13 14 
15 16 17 

Parks & Rec Bd 7 

18 19 
Airport 
Commission 7-
cancelled 

20 21 

22 23 
Council 7 

24 
Shade Tree 7 

25 
HPC 7 

26 27 28 
29 30 31     

       

 

2017 

O
ct

ob
er

 



 
  Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

   1 
Civil Service –
Cancelled 
Planning 

2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 
BZA-cancelled 

9 10 11 
12 13 

Council 

14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 
Council Re-Org 
6:30 p.m. 
Parking & Safety 
7 p.m. 

21 
Parks & Rec Bd 7 
p.m. 

22 23 
City Offices 
Closed 

24 
City Offices 
Closed 

25 

26 27 
Council 7 p.m. 

28 
Shade Tree 7 p.m. 

29 
HPC 7 p.m. 

30   

       

 
2017 

N
ov

em
be

r 



 
 Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

     1 2 
Budget Work 
Session  

3 4 
Budget Work 
Session  

5 6 
Civil Service -
cancelled 
Planning 

7 8 9 

10 11 
Council  

12 13 
BZA-cancelled 

14 15 16 
17 18 19 

Parks & Rec Bd-
cancelled 

20 
HPC 

21 
Council – year-end 

22 
City Offices Close 
at Noon 

23 

24 25 
City Offices 
Closed 

26 
Shade Tree – 
cancelled 

27 28 29 30 

31       

 
2017 

D
ec

em
be

r 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – December 7, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
New Beginnings (UMC)  Agreement for Medical Services $116.20/hr Fire Dept 
Gannett Fleming The Point RR Bridge Replacement – 

Preliminary Engineering 
$948,898 Public Works 

Kroger Co. Temporary Construction Easement 
with Kroger Co.  for the 
reconstruction of the W. Central 
Beikpath 

$0 Public Works 

Burgess & Niple Provision of professional 
environmental field investigation 
and reporting services for EPA 
mandated 2018 monitoring of the 
Cherry Street landfill 

$3,900 Public Works 

     


	01 20171211 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20171127 council minutes
	03 20171202 budget work session minutes
	04 20171204 budget work session minutes
	05 20170821 parking and safety
	06 20171024 shade tree minutes
	07 20171025 hpc minutes
	08 20171101 planning minutes
	09 fact sheet res 17- 65, new appointment expiration dates
	10 res 17 -65  new appointment expiration dates
	11 Acker-Airport Commission County Appointment
	12 arts festival memo
	13 Artsfestival Proposal
	14 CoHatch_12_07_17_memoFinanceAuthority
	15 fact sheet ord 17-72, PC 2017-2592 Hook Revocable Trust REZ
	AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ON...

	16 ord 17-72, PC 2017-2592 Hook Revocable Trust REZ
	AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ON...

	17 PC 2017-2592 rezone amend hook trust
	18 fact sheet ord 17-74, budget 2018
	19 ord 17-74 2018 Appropriation Ord
	20 fact sheet res 17-66,  Columbus Crew
	21 res 17-66,  Columbus Crew
	22 fact sheet ord 17-77, amend muni court pay plan
	23 ord 17-77 , amended court employee benefits
	24 Memo to Judges-2018 Benefits Changes
	25 Benefits Manual 2018
	26 fact sheet ord 17-78 ,  amend ppt pay ord
	27 ord 17 - 78, amend ppt seasonal pay plan
	28 fact sheet ord 17-79, mgt pay plan
	29 ord 17-79, amend mgt pay plan
	30 Management Pay Plan_2018
	PAY GRADE                  POSITION
	1.  Maximum Vacation Accrual
	2. Initial Compensatory Time
	3. Clothing Maintenance Allowance
	4. Uniforms Allowance

	A. Vacation
	Days/Hours of Leave
	SECTION III - INSURANCE
	Department Heads = $50,000

	SECTION IV
	OTHER COMPENSATION
	SECTION V
	MISCELLANEOUS

	31 fact sheet ord 17-80, amend manager compensation
	32 ord 17-80,  city manager compensation
	33 Agreement- City Manager Employment 2018 DRAFT
	34 fact sheet ord 17-81, fee schedule update
	35 ord  17-81 , fee schedule update
	36 fact sheet ord 17 -82 , FDP Communities at Glenross Section 12
	37 ord 17 -82, FDP Communities at Glenross Section 12
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-82
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	38 2017-2814 2815 Communities Glenross Staff Report
	39 fact sheet ord 17 - 83, FSP Communities at Glenross Section 12
	40 ord 17-83, FSP Communities at Glenross Section 12
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-83
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	41 fact sheet ord 17 -84 , Burr Oak Commons FDP factsheet
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOC...

	42 ord 17-84, Burr Oak Commons FDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOC...

	43 2017-2904 Burr Oak Commons Staff Report
	44 city managers report 20171207
	45 december calender
	46 20171211 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – December 7, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Fire Dept
	$116.20/hr
	New Beginnings (UMC) 
	Agreement for Medical Services

	Public Works
	$948,898
	Gannett Fleming
	The Point RR Bridge Replacement – Preliminary Engineering

	$0
	Kroger Co.
	Temporary Construction Easement with Kroger Co.  for the reconstruction of the W. Central Beikpath

	$3,900
	Burgess & Niple
	Provision of professional environmental field investigation and reporting services for EPA mandated 2018 monitoring of the Cherry Street landfill


	fact sheet ord 17-72, PC 2017-2592 Hook Revocable Trust REZ.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ON...




